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Our strategy to accelerate growth in Greater China by promoting cross-territories business
and leveraging cooperative opportunities with Teamsun showed solid progress. These
advances together with our expansionary strategy to further explore regional opportunities
through mergers and acquisitions pave the way for enormous growth opportunities in the
year ahead. With our well-established vendor network and technical expertise to service
customers in high level of satisfaction, we are set to enjoy a strong regional growth.

This year, we draw on landmarks in different regions to share our vision with you, as we aim
to become one of the leading IT services providers in the Asia-Pacific region riding on our

solid regional foundation.
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ASL at a Glarjge
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Corporate Overview 5 B &/

Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973

Teamsun (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) becomes the Company’s ultimate controlling
shareholder in September 2009, supporting the Company ‘s further business

expansion in the Asia Pacific region

Dedicated to delivering one-stop IT services to customers across the region with
business operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau and Thailand
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+ 8.8% +74.2%
09 HK$914.0M 09 HK$19.8M
10 HK$994.5M> 10 HK$34.5M>
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Scored significant wins from the [T infrastructure, solutions and services
businesses continually

Established professional solutions team and proven service delivery methods to
bolster the solutions business

Won a number of significant long term managed and maintenance services
contracts in both Hong Kong and overseas showed our high level of

services excellence

Intensified regional expansion with focus in Greater China

Accelerated business expansion by leveraging more collaborative opportunities
with Teamsun

2011 Outlooks & &

Promote the solutions business with focus on business intelligence and
security solutions

Capture the upward regional demands in IT security products and solutions by
leveraging the exclusive distributorship of YESKEY, a security-related IT product,
from Teamsun Group

Expect the continued investment in intellectual property development to bring us

higher market differentiation

Speed up our growth in Greater China by creating more synergies with Teamsun
and following the current cross-territories business strategy

Act as a springboard to help mainland enterprises to expand overseas for

regional development

Explore regional opportunities to achieve growth through mergers and acquisitions
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Striving for our quality services commitments, ASL continues to perfecting our
Customer Service Excellence by strengthening supply chain management,
procurement and logistics services in accordance with 1SO 9001 standard on quality
management. Our service delivery teams also comply with the ISO 9001 standards,
giving the highest customer satisfaction in service delivery.

Apart from the commitment to quality based on our new Quality Policy of ASL, ASL

is dedicated to delivering projects and services with reference to the worldwide
professional standards and models. Our deliveries are all lead by well-trained
professional managers certified with Project Management Professional ("PMP"), the
de-facto standard for project management practiced worldwide, Projects in Controlled
Environments 2 ("PRINCE 2") or IT Infrastructure Library (“ITIL).

In addition, we are also devoted to incorporate social responsibility into our culture
and business. Our efforts are laying the groundwork for future company growth, client
loyalty and environmental sustainability.

As a corporate citizen caring for the community,

employees and environment, Automated Systems (HK)
e S s e Limited (ASL Hong Kong), one of the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group, is honored the designation of “Caring Company 2010/2011",
recognizing our corporate social responsibility involvement, by the Hong Kong Council
of Social Services.

. T
caringcompany "

ASL Hong Kong is committed to reduce environmental
“Kﬁpc impacts by being fellow member, the highest level of

Fellow Member of HKGPC membership, of the Hong Kong Green Purchasing Charter,
in November 2010. With the rising awareness on green purchasing in the community,
ASL is devoted to assist organizations in launching and practicing green IT solutions by
offering green IT products and related services, including IT consultancy, strategy and
carbon footprint assessment to help them achieve environmental sustainability.

. BRONZE corperston

’ Awards ("HKGA") 2010” under the category of "Green
- m-m:-w:mm- Office Management Award" from Green Council, which
demonstrates ASLs achievements on implementing environmental management in
offices as well as our commitment in investing in environmental sustainability services
and Green initiatives that benefit our customers, our company and the world around

us. ASL Hong Kong will aim for a continuous improvement on the overall Green Office
Management performance to strive for a higher recognition of HKGA next year.

ASL Hong Kong has also received the "Hong Kong Green
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New Quality PoIicy of ASL
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We aim at providing advanced and comprehensive IT services to satisfy the business
needs of our customers through extensive strategic alliance, innovative integrated
technology applications and the value of our staff on:

Taking part in “Teamwork”

“Strive for excellence” through continual improvements

“Problem solving” for customers with Group's strength and synergy

Being “Accountable” on each one’s area of responsibilities towards the Group's goal
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Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
Version 1.2 - Maturity Level 3 Rating

Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
1.2 — =R

Enterprise Solutions & CMMIe is registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
Services Division by Carnegie Mellon University
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ELM Computer Technologies Limited i /K E iR K B R A 7

Provision of information Computer Information System Integration (Sl)
technology system integration, Qualification Certification — Level 3 Qualification
software development,

installation and maintenance GIEMEERGEREERAE) —E=4E8
support services

REUHRAMBRERA B This certificate was granted by the Ministry of

BIS  RERAEE X BRI Informatlon Industry of the PRC Government
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAl Yam Ting, Ready (Chief Executive Officer)
LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon (Chief Operating Officer)
LAU Ming Chi, Edward (Chief Financial Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
HU Liankui (Chairman)

WANG Weihang

CHEN Zhaohui

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
YOUNG Meng Ying

LU Jiagi

XU Peng

SECRETARY

LAU Ming Chi, Edward
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd

Argyle House, 41a Cedar Avenue,

Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 771

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
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Financial Calendar
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RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT
REQE

First quarter Interim Annual
(for the three months ended (for the six months ended (for the nine months ended
30th June 2010) 30th September 2010) 31st December 2010)
27th August 2010 26th October 2010 10th March 2011
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Interim dividend payment (4.0 HK cents per share) Proposed final dividend payment (4.0 HK cents per share)
14th December 2010 13th May 2011
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20th April 2011 to 27th April 2011 27th April 2011
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Financial Summary
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RESULTS
£

Continuing operations
Revenue

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit from continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued
operations
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Profit for the period/year attributable 22 R A #H B A &ML

to equity holders of the Company
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERERE

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity

holders of the Company
Total equity

DAREFEA
FE 1 B A R 2
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s

For the nine
months ended
31st December

HK$'000
TER

994,509
44,181
(9,648)

34,533

34,533

As at

31st December
2010
R-Z-ZF
+=ZA=+-—H
HK$'000
THER

820,799
363,558

457,241

457,241
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For the twelve months ended 31st March

HE=A=+—-HLt+=fEA

2010 2009 2008
—E-TF —TENF ZTTN\F
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHBT FHT FHET
(restated)
(Z31)
1,329,982 1,360,988 1,315,060
53617 43,262 81,639
(9,857) (9,423) (11,786)
43,760 33,839 69,853
72,598 8312 6,300
116,358 42,651 76,153
As at 31st March
R=A=+—H
2010 2009 2008
—T-TF ZTTNFE ZTTN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FET FHET
(restated)
(&751)
830,361 883,562 994,995
424,796 352,066 426,874
406,065 531,496 568,121
406,065 531,496 568,121

2007
—TTLF
HK$'000
THT

1,205,524
56,282
(7,305)

48977

4,583

53,560

2007
—ETLE
HK$'000
FHT

892,453
368,498

523,955

523,955
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present the annual

report of Automated Systems Holdings Limited (“ASL" or the “Group”) for the nine
months period ended 31st December 2010.

The Group has changed its financial year end date from 31st March to 31st
December in order to align its financial year end date with Beijing Teamsun
Technology Co,, Ltd. (“Teamsun”) to facilitate the preparation and updating of the

consolidated financial statements and accounts.

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$994.5 million from continuing operations. Profit after income tax from
the continuing operations for the nine months ended 31st December 2010 was
HK$34.5 million, an increase of HK$14.7 million or 74.2% compared to HK$19.8
million from the corresponding period last year. The Group continues to enjoy

a healthy financial position and the cash balance as at 31st December 2010 was

approximately HK$195.6 million.

The period under review was another profitable year for the Group. We were
awarded with numerous multi-million dollar contracts in the infrastructure,
solutions and service businesses. Keeping a keen pulse on today's IT world, the
Group continues to focus on the solutions business, particularly with the growing
demands of business intelligence and security solutions. We expect our continued

investment in intellectual property development would enable us to achieve

excellent IT support services, faster time-to-market, and greater value to customers,

bringing us higher market differentiation.
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The Group will pursue our business strategy on cross territories business while
continuing to leverage our resources with Teamsun in order to further expand the

Asia Pacific market.

The Group continues to comply with numerous internationally recognised
standards including International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO"),
Capability Maturity Model Integration (“CMMI"), Six Sigma and SO/ International
Electrotechnical Commission (“IEC") 20000 Standard (ITIL). These recognitions

represent our whole-hearted commitment to quality service and customer care.

As one of the top service providers in the region, we share our journey to success
with our partners and were honoured with a number of awards from our partners
during the period under review, including “FY10 Best Country Storage Partner”
and “FY10 Best FSI & Government Partner” by Symantec. Apart from appreciation
received from our peers, the Group also received recognition as a socially
responsible corporation by receiving the Hong Kong Green Awards 2010 - Green
Office Management Award (Corporation) Bronze and being awarded a Partner

Employer Award. We are also a proud member of the “Caring Company”.

Our ties with renowned IT vendors remain strong. The Group was promoted to
Platinum Partner by Hewlett Packard and VMWare Inc. presented ASL with their
most prestigous partnership, the VMWare Premier Partner. During the period
under review, we also forged a new partnership with Apple Asia Limited, a
telecommunication, multi-media and IT business giant with products ranging
from mobile phones to notebook computers. We look forward to forge greater

partnership with Apple Asia Limited and our other existing partners.

Together with the support of many well known [T vendors, we are able to provide
further coverage for our service offerings across Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan,
Mainland China and Thailand. The Group will continue to take advantage of
Teamsun's vast and solid vendor network to support our cross-territories business

strategy in the Asia Pacific region.

On behalf of the Board, | thank the management and staff for their dedication and
significant contribution during the period under review and their continuing to

achieve satisfactory results.
I also take this opportunity to thank our faithful clients, business partners and

shareholders for their continued support. In conclusion, | thank my fellow directors

for their whole-hearted cooperation, support and valuable contributions.

HU Liankui

Chairman

Hong Kong, 10th March 2011
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Chairman’s Statement
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Chief Executive Officer’'s Statement
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LAl Yam Ting, Ready Chief Executive Officer
BEE Thes

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Financial Results

The Group has changed its financial year end date from 31st March to 31st
December. The Group has decided to align its financial year end date with Beijing
Teamsun Technology Co,, Ltd. (“Teamsun”) to facilitate the preparation and
updating of the consolidated financial statements and accounts.

The Group's revenue from continuing operations for the nine months ended

31st December 2010 was HK$994.5 million, higher by 8.8% compared to the nine
months ended 31st December 2009. For the three months ended 31st December
2010, the Group's revenue from continuing operations was HK$361.2 million,
higher by 21.9% compared to the same period last year.

Product sales and service revenue for the nine months ended 31st December
2010 were HK$573.9 million and HK$420.6 million, increasing by 5.5% and 13.6%
respectively compared to the same period in 2009. Product sales and service
revenue for the nine months ended 31st December 2010 contributed 57.7% and
42.3% to total revenue respectively compared to 59.5% and 40.5% of total revenue
during the corresponding period from the previous year.

Commercial and public sector sales from continuing operations for the nine
months ended 31st December 2010 contributed 45.9% and 54.1% to revenue
respectively compared to 47.1% and 52.9% in the same period last year.
Commercial and public sector sales for the three months ended 31st December
2010 contributed 39.6% and 60.4% to revenue respectively compared to 47.9% and
52.1% from the corresponding period last year. For the nine months ended 31st
December 2010, profit after income tax from continuing operations was HK$34.5
million, indicating a year on year increase of 74.2%. For the three months ended
31st December 2010, profit after income tax from continuing operations was
HK$16.7 million, higher by 65.8% compared to the corresponding period in 2009.
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The order book balance as of 31st December 2010 was approximately HK$616.3
million. The Group's net cash stood at approximately HK$195.6 million with a
working capital ratio of 1.81:1. The Group maintained a healthy balance sheet and
no debt was recorded during the period under review.

In view of the change of financial year end date of the Group, the audited and
unaudited results for the nine months and the twelve months ended 31st
December 2010 and 2009 (as appropriate) are tabled below for comparative
purpose only.

Audited
Nine months
ended
31st December
2010
&S
BE-T-TF
+ZA=t+—H~
EAEA
HK$'000
FTAET
Continuing operations RESEER
Revenue A 994,509
Cost of goods sold SHERCA (510438)
Cost of services rendered MR 2 AR (354871)
Other income HeA 4534
Fair value gain on revaluation of ERBRBNELAR
investment properties EEEM 5,800
Selling expenses HEBH (52,601)
Administrative expenses THER (43,657)
Finance income g AN 681
Finance costs BE B -
Share of results of associates FE(RBEE R A EE 224
Profit before income tax BRATEBATRA 44181
Income tax expense FIEHRAX (9,648)
Profit from continuing operations REBECEER 2T 34533
Discontinued operations BRIELEER
Profit from discontinued operations REBKIEEEER 2 ET] -
Profit for the period/year attributable EATREFEAEED/
to equity holders of the Company FR A 34533

Solid performance was recorded for the nine months ended 31st December 2010
as the business of the Group progressed steadily. The Group continued to score
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THRARRE
R-Z—2F+-A=+—A FRETEHHED

/7%616300000/’57E CAREBZHESFEEFRY
195600000,%71 mEEENLLER] 1811 « AEE
EESARNZEEREREFER YEEE-

BAAREEE R B FE

EER R EBE—T—

FER-FEAST-A=t—BULABARTS

IHZ,@%@&* TEIZES (ER)  AFIER
AR
Unaudited Unaudited
Nine months Twelve months
ended ended
31st December 31st December
2009 2010 2009
REEZ REERZ
BE-TINE BE+—A
+-f=+-8 =+—git-
LENEA —T-TF ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# TiH7 TiE7
914,012 1,392,510 1,282,350
(494,320) (754,950) (711,184)
(313,829) (456,170) (408,958)
4133 7278 6,542
- 9,390 -
(49,380) (69,631) (73,950)
(36,816) (57,557) (55,253)
315 874 315
- - (230)
749 1,190 793
24,864 72,934 40,425
(5,084) (14,421) (9,.852)
19,780 58513 30,573
72,598 - 73,519
92,378 58513 104,092
REFBEBBLER WREE_T—ZF+=A
=+—HBIENERASGERERESE ZK‘%I?J%_%ZEEQHT

significant wins from the [T infrastructure, solutions and services businesses. The

increase in IT spending was primarily driven by added demand and economic growth.

Within the infrastructure business, the Group secured a contract worth more than
HK$6 million to provide a renowned public transport operator in Hong Kong with
an email systems upgrade and migration services in October 2010. Our services will
offer greater storage capacity and improved information sharing to our customer,
which will help them to address the issues of rapid growth and aging hardware.

During the period under review, we saw an increasing trend of customers
demanding IT solutions to resolve their business challenges. This was in line with
the Group's strategy to bolster the solutions business. In particular, we noticed a
steady growth in demand for business intelligence and security solutions.

REREE RS RMRIEEE LGERRE - &
AR EINE E R EIE R N BT B

EERZEBIH AEER -2 -ZF+ ARG
BB 186,000,000/ 72 A 4 * [A)— %%&%’%%E’J
HERZSERREEFBHERGTRREE RS -
BB AEPRUREAFHERKEEANZ &
158 By H e B R R B R AR (L 2 78 -

REBHA HFERTP AR E XD E M
BMBHRBAT ZRFBREEMOBE - BT ER
SEBREMANTREB 2R —B -BMAFHNEE
IHEBRER LR RZBRERIER -
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The growing needs of business intelligence solutions are fueled by our customers’
increased desire to improve their decision making processes. In the commercial
sector on one hand, particularly at the retail level, analytical solutions to identify
buying behaviors and sales activities were in upward demand due to the need

to reduce operation cost and maintain business growth. On the other hand,

the increasing demands for security solutions were driven by sophisticated
security threats, increased usage of remote access, more regulatory compliance
requirements and greater acceptance of new delivery models for services, such as
cloud computing and software-as-a-services.

With an established professional solutions team and proven service delivery
methods, we took advantage of the above and secured a number of significant
and complex solutions projects. In December 2010, the Group won a multi-million
dollar business intelligence project from the wholly-owned subsidiary of one of
the world's largest investment and insurance companies. The service which will be
provided to them includes the consolidation of raw data and customer data from
all their business units into a clean and organised view of the business used for
reporting and analysis. In the same month, we also won a security contract from a
government authority to consolidate and centralise all IT log data for an optimised
and more secure network.

During the period under review, the services business won a number of significant
long term managed and maintenance services contracts. These contracts will
provide the Group with a stable and recurrent income base. The Group was
awarded with a workflow management system project from a government
authority in December 2009. In May 2010, the Group was awarded with a support
services contract valued in excess of HKS1 million to provide professional services
under eight separate service categories for the subsequent phase of the above
mentioned workflow management system project. The contract value of the
entire project will be over HK$40 million. We were also awarded with numerous
projects such as the provision of networking, database and storage products by this
government authority during the period under review. We share a long history with
this government authority and this project illustrates the trust and confidence that
our customers have in the Group and the services provided by us.

The Group continued to increase its presence in the Greater China region. Our
cross-territories business showed solid progress after we successfully followed the
footsteps of our Hong Kong-based customers and international corporations into
Mainland China. During the period under review, our customer portfolio grew while
our services offerings were greater in complexity, volume, geographical coverage
and scope. A number of sizable cross-territories projects were secured, including
two multi-million dollar storage projects that were deployed in Hong Kong and
Shenzhen for one of the region's largest shipping companies. Moreover, projects
that involved cross-territorial deployment in Mainland China were successfully
carried out, covering a number of first and second tier cities in Mainland China.

To further our business in Greater China, the Group capitalised on the strategy to
leverage collaborative opportunities with Teamsun. Notably, in December 2010,
the Group and Teamsun jointly secured a tender in excess of HK$7 million from

a subsidiary of a renowned public transport operator in Hong Kong to set up a
new data center in Shenzhen. The new data center will facilitate the customer’s
operation of a transportation system which will soon be in service. ASL will be
responsible for the solutions design, hardware and software installation, and
maintenance services.

Our success within the region firmly demonstrates our capabilities as a one-stop
service provider, and our ability to capitalise on cross-territories opportunities.
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The Group expects the momentum for growth seen in 2010 to continue for the
remainder of 2011. We provide a range of products and services offerings with our
well-established vendor network and technical expertise and, we will continue to
promote the solutions business with a focus on business intelligence and security
in the solutions arena. The exclusive distributorship of YESKEY, a security related

IT product from Teamsun and its subsidiaries (“Teamsun Group"), will place us in a
prime position to strengthen the leading role we hold within the growing regional
[T-security market. In view of this, we will continue to work closely with Teamsun to
bring diverse and advanced solutions to customers in the year ahead.

Apart from providing customised solutions using market available IT products, we
have dedicated forces to study ways of monetising some of our market-proven
solutions. We plan to replicate these successful solutions to other industries. We
expect our continued investment in intellectual property development will enable
us to achieve excellent IT support services, faster time-to-market, and greater value
to customers, bringing us higher market differentiation.

We will follow our current cross-territories business strategy while continuing

to leverage Teamsun for greater synergies in the Greater China market. In

January 2011, the Group and Teamsun jointly received two multi-million dollar IT
infrastructure upgrade orders after already having received a multi-million dollar
order of the same nature in December 2010 for one of the largest IT distribution
companies in Taiwan. Servers, storage, networking products and a 3-year
maintenance services contract will be provided at many logistics centers to support
the customer's worldwide operations and business expansion. The locations
include the customer's headquarters in Taiwan, their data center in Shanghai and
office in Australia. This contract signifies the continued trust placed on ASL's service
expertise in the Asia Pacific region, and the sustained success of our presence in
Taiwan over the past decade.

Apart from leveraging Teamsun to help multinationals and Hong Kong

based enterprises entering into China, the Group will also closely monitor for
opportunities to act as a springboard to help mainland enterprises to expand
overseas for regional development.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to seek for regional opportunities to
achieve growth through mergers and acquisition for further business expansion.
Through implementation of a well conceived strategy, we believe our goal of
becoming one of the leading IT services providers in the Asia Pacific region will
soon be realised.

As at 31st December 2010, the Group’s total assets of HK$820.8 million were
financed by current liabilities of HK$345.5 million, non-current liabilities of HK$18.1
million and shareholders’ equity of HK$457.2 million. The Group had a working
capital ratio of approximately 1.81:1.
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As at 31st December 2010, the Group had an aggregate composite banking
facility from banks of approximately HK$112.2 million (31st March 2010: HK$29.5
million). The Group had pledged land and buildings and investment properties in
an aggregate amount of HK$154.0 million (31st March 2010: HKSNil) and restricted
bank deposits of approximately HK$1.9 million (31st March 2010: HK$29.5 million)
for banking facilities granted to the Group. The performance bond issued by the
Group to customers as security of contracts was approximately HK$31.3 million as
at 31st December 2010 (31st March 2010: HK$29.5 million). The Group's gearing
ratio was zero as at 31st December 2010 (31st March 2010: zero).

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally generated resources
and credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available for the Group include
trust receipt loans, overdrafts and term loans. The interest rates of most of these
are fixed by reference to the respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The bank
deposits are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars
(“US dollars”).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars and Hong Kong
dollars. Foreign exchange exposure of the Group will continue to be minimal as
long as the policy of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region to link the Hong Kong dollars to the US dollars remains in effect. There was
no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates, and no hedging activities
were engaged by the Group during the nine months ended 31st December 2010.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2010, bank deposits held as security for banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$1.9 million (31st March 2010: HK$29.5 million). At
31st December 2010, the amount of available bank facilities is HK$112.2 million and
the performance bond of HK$31.3 million (31st March 2010: HK$29.5 million) has
been issued by the Group to customers as security of contracts.

Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods supplied to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$44.7 million as at 31st December 2010 (31st March
2010: HKS51.5 million). The amount utilised against goods supplied as at 31st
December 2010 which was secured by the corporate guarantee was approximately
HKS$3.7 million (31st March 2010: HK$0.7 million).

Capital Commitment
As at 31st December 2010, the contracted capital commitments of the Group were
HK$0.4 million (31st March 2010: HKS 1.4 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, the five largest customers and
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 17.8% and 5.1%,
respectively, of the Group's revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 40.6% and 14.4%, respectively,
of the Group's purchases.
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At no time during the nine months ended 31st December 2010 did a director, an

associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has an
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2010, the Group, excluding its associates, employed 1,639
permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan, Mainland China and
Thailand. The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and the prevailing market conditions. Bonuses are granted on
a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident fund,
insurance, medical coverage and share options scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 20th April 2011 to
27th April 2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected. In order to qualify for the final dividend and the entitlement to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
registrars, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 19th April 2011.
The dividend warrants will be despatched on or before 13th May 2011.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 15th July 2010. The
Board announced that the financial year end date of the Company has been
changed from 31st March to 31st December.

As a result of the change, the current period financial statements were made up
of a 9-month-period from 1st April 2010 to 31st December 2010 and therefore
the comparative amounts for the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow statement and
related notes, which covered a period from 1st April 2009 to 31st March 2010, are
not directly comparable.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed
securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters including the review of the audited annual results.

By Order of the Board
Lai Yam Ting, Ready
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10th March 2011
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Activity Highlights
EBIER

Apr /9 A 2010

As the sole SWIFT's services provider in Hong Kong and Macau,
ASL joins SWIFT Business Forum — Shanghai 2010 to share its
best practices on SWIFT services to mainland enterprises.
ERWIFTR EELBPFIMBRRIGHER BB RL
LESWIFTE ¥ 8 — 82010 BAM B ES ZHR
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Jun 7< H 2010

ASL Macau shares the next-
generation backup and recovery
solution with organizations.
BB ZFARPIL A EERE
DEHF— KRB MERE

SWIFTRR 75 B9 & £ FE FA o RFR

solutions.

Oct + A 2010

Over 40 ASL staff and their family members
have fun at a 2-day annual Zhaogqing trip
organized by ASL's Zhuhai Outsourcing
Delivery Excellence Center.
BRAOLEHEREINERBNE
B REGIRE F NI AT O BT I
REM RN FEEE 2 IR A E R -

Oct 1+ A 2010

ASL participates in the Work Life Balance
Day 2010 as part of its "Quality Work Life
Program” for staff well-being.
BENRMBMNEEETETFEH2010 -
RRZERTDBETENMEN EET
TEAERT S EDh — R

Aug /\ B 2010

ASL Guangzhou enlightens
mainland customers on the latest
enterprise content management
and business intelligence

EEES ) PNl €
WEFPERRTEENTE
BREERERRT R

QO Nov+—H 2010

Representatives of Teamsun visit ASL's
headquarters with Beijing government officials.
FERERRORKRELRBNE B —RA28
EEIESFECEIE
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Activity Highlights
mEIER

Mr.Y.T. Lai, CEO of ASL (left) leads the
team of ASL Thailand to plant trees
for environmental protection.
BRRASITHAHBEERE
(L)BEEDRGEREA RN
B AIRRER -

ASL Thailand holds a joyful party during a 2-day “Charity &
Funny Trip 2010" themed with environmental protection and
team building.
BEYEAGHRBEARERIRARREEKEL BE
B [REF O IR 2010] BAMETT T —@F R 88ta
K ¥

ASL obtains an exclusive distributorship of YESKEY outside
China from Teamsun to further its expansion in regional IT
security market.

BB RFT B EBRKIESYESKEYERBIEINY B R AR
RERE E—PHRARBANEARRZEHOMS -

ASL holds an award ceremony to recognize the contribution of
staff in Intellectual Property development.

BERGRIT - REEX
NKBRANBERERT
EHEBMWET -

ASL brings regional customers to join large-scale
Teamsun IT Service Forum in Beijing.

B FRERATF2EEBRKEILRK
MR EEMERGES -

ASL keeps a keen pulse on today's IT
world to promote green [T solution
offerings at the 5th Eco Expo Asia.
BPAGZARSEMB TR
BIRE RERLEBRRRES
HESAEEMBHRART R

ASL receives the Hong Kong Green
Awards 2010 — Green Office Management
Award from Green Council.
BRESRNRREESERETERE
ERI010 — RRPAEEERHE-

Happy faces gather at ASL Friday Bowling Night — one
of the recreational activities for employees to enjoy
group participation and teamwork which ASL values.
BIERBERIRERIRZR —WHEHEHE
AP — A B ER2E R BRSO R
EB
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

EAEWFE%ZEEQ

HONG KONG CUSTOMER SCOPE OF WORK
BRBEF BHEE

Government B fF

A government department A multi-million dollar contract for the system analysis and design, system
— AT ERFT implementation and integration and system maintenance and support of the
Contract Staff Payroll System

BEBEETZAK RENBEIXHERBETERIITRRE &R

Bt R BE AR F oM E R E
A government department Provision of system maintenance and support for a core record information system
— BRAF AR P RO E B RS R R i i N SR RS
A government department Supply of a computer system for Enterprise System Management and provision of
— BB related services
REEFREBHEE-—EBMALS  WIREBBERS
A government department System implementation and system integration of the serviceability management
— BB system for better public service and system management
RBRBENEBZRREEEZREGRZRES  UWELLRAERBRER
£t
g
A government authority A security contract to consolidate and centralize all IT log data for an optimized
— BT and more secure network
—PREEH BAREPAEEARMKREHEBBABRAR KT
HEHzzlt

A million-plus support services contract to provide professional services under
eight separate service categories for the subsequent phase of a workflow
management system project that was awarded to the Group in December 2009.
The contract value of the entire project will be over HK$4O million
BEARBTIXERBEY REER-_ZTNF+_AEEZ—@
MIRERRFIA R R B R - N \IETR A RS IER TR F E R -
B {E18 B &4 4B B 15 1840,000,0008 78 7T

- J
Education H &
An education, training and professional development group Provision of supply, installation, commissioning and maintenance of servers and
—HE FIIRFEEREEE storage systems replacement for an e-learning, staff email and smartcard database
system
RPLEE BEEBREETEBERSAMERRSLFETROLREHR
i SRR IR
A renowned university A 3-year multi-million dollar contract for the provision of hardware consolidated
—EBKRE maintenance services of servers, systems, network equipments and related
peripherals
—REB=F BEEASTZAL UREARSE Rt BERER
HEEEER B IR EERT
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year
RERFEZEEZEN
SCOPE OF WORK

BREE

Financial Services and Insurance % &t R 1§ & 1% &

An independent non-governmental statutory body

—BIIEMITAEWE

A multi-million dollar project for the provision of helpdesk and data center
operation support services

BEHASTZER REK A REEH LEFEIERY

A leading global investment bank
—ERRRRERT

Implementation of over HK$5 million dollars IT infrastructure project for stock
trading system upgrade
B EEEBE50000008 T2 EAMKRERER  URAKREES RS

A wholly-owned subsidiary of one of the world's largest
investment and insurance companies

~

ER—M2RERZRERRBRARNEZENB AR

A multi-million dollar business intelligence project to consolidate raw data and
customer data from all their business units into a clean and organized view of the
business used for reporting and analysis

BEXEETHHESRER SIEBELZREBBENEFPEEE
EBRBMEBERERZEBHRE (ERBERSTZHA

N\

Telecommunications & &

A leading mobile network operator

—ERBRBANBERE

Provision of hardware and software maintenance with on-site and helpdesk
support services

PRALRE ¢ R B R RIS RO B B SR RS

and related services

—ERELEEREMAERGHERS

A world-leading provider of telecommunications equipment

Provision of IT managed services

REEAPHER RS

Transportation & &

‘
\§

A renowned public transport operator
—BBERLNHERHEEN

A contract worth more than HK$6 million to provide an email systems upgrade
and migration services

{E{EB 86,000,000/ L2 &4 IREETHHFRAA L LBE RS

A tender valued at more than HK$7 million from a subsidiary of the customer

for the provision of solutions design, hardware and software installation, and
maintenance services for a new data center setup in Shenzhen to facilitate
customer’s operation of a transportation system which will be in service soon
B{ERA7,000000E THRIFER - REFPH—RNEB A RERIIRILZ
FEEP ORERT REE BUHMEG R LEERY UBEF
BEIE— (AR IR AR 2 Bl £ 5t

One of the region’s largest shipping companies

BAES —H&EARZME AT

Two multi-million dollar storage projects that were deployed in Hong Kong and
Shenzhen

EEEMAYBRMBBERE ST FHAE

One of the key carriers on the North-South trade route

MitESHE LT EEHBAA

~

A million-plus dollars regional application virtualisation project that involved a
wide-territorial deployment across 10 cities in Asia Pacific
BEABETHEHEREXNELRCER P REXRAOERTEZ
Eppiupeg=iess

N\
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year
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SCOPE OF WORK
BHEE

General Commerce & ¥

A subsidiary of an international lifestyle brand

— BIBRE 1 R R 2 BB A )

Provision of 3-year managed helpdesk support services

RESHM=F 2 EERYG 6 ERY

A Hong Kong-listed property developer

Two IT infrastructure projects to set up the customer's Taiwan operation and

— AR LM HERRRD Chengdu office
L MIEBEMBHEERIER URIRFPZAEEBRKEHER
OVERSEAS CUSTOMER SCOPE OF WORK

BINEF

Mainland China # i ;& ith

BHREE

China Southern Airlines Company Limited

HEEIMERDABRAG

Jointly work together with the customer to upgrade the customer’s existing
Technical Document Management System and build a new system architecture
and platform

HEFPAERABEFPZRARMEM XM ER AL LR RSEE
RE&

Guangzhou Administration for Industry and Commerce
Bureau Panyu Substation

BENTIATREERERN B

A virtualization upgrade project

EHCTHRIAR

An [T services provider

— BB R R

Provision of storage hardware for pork safety management with 7x24
maintenance services

RERBFEERASRRKEEEGRLH T/ S HERS

Macau S® 9

One of the world's leading hospitality companies

He—f2HRBENBEREAR

Provision of high-end storage and backup system for mission critical applications

AEREREARERRETERED RR

A renowned local bank

B —EFRIRTT

Provision of IT security assessment service

REEMBR L 2 E RS
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERNFTEZEEZSYN

OVERSEAS CUSTOMER SCOPE OF WORK
BIHEF BRHEE

Taiwan & &

Chartis Taiwan Insurance Co., Ltd. Upgrade of IT Infrastructure

ETEDRERHERAF R BB ERE

One of the largest baby goods manufacturers in the world Provision of enterprise servers with 3-year 7x24 onsite support services for its

— AR AZEREREER Taipei and Dongguan operations
REBIERRZEBRECERFARBLRAA=F 2B T/
B i 2 & AR 7%

One of the largest IT distribution companies A multi-million dollars IT infrastructure upgrade order for the provision of servers,

HAf —M& R EAR KD HAF storage, networking products and a 3-year maintenance services
—HEBHESTNEMBRERARGT S  RERRS #7F @EE
m R BEZF 2 RS

_ J

Thailand &

A Thailand branch of an international bank A 3-year million-plus order to provide disaster recovery site support services

—BIRRITORE ST BEABET RB=F T8 NIRHKBERIERS

A manufacturer of a renowned energy drink in the world A multi-million dollar disaster recovery site project

—2HEF R YREE A ST SRR

Bank for Agriculture And Agricultural Cooperatives Implementation of an IT infrastructure upgrade project for the provision of

REEFEMEEAERRTT desktop computers and printers
RESEEMRITEH LB A AR REZIRAER

N\

N\




7 Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) & #t 5k B A R A 7]

Profile of Directors

EEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #1 {TE =

Chief Executive Officer of the Company

+ Aged 57

+ Graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Science degree (Honours) in 1976

+ General Manager of Hong Kong Operations of the Group
from 1991 to 2002

+ Joined the Group in 1976 and appointed as director of
the Company in 1997

Annual Report 2010 £ ¥k

KRB ZITHAR

- BER+HEBR

+ R—NMERFEERBFBETNXAE KE
BE(RE)BELB

cR—AN—FE-_TT_FAAEE
BEREBBEE

s R NAERENBEAEEER—NANL
FRZERARRZES

Chief Operating Officer of the Company

+ Aged 50

+ Graduated from the California State University, Long
Beach, the United States of America with a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Business Computer Method and a
Master's Degree in Business Administration

+ Director and the co-founder of AsiaSoft Company
Limited

+ Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

AAFZEREEE

+ BERTR

c BEREBEMMMIAZBRESR FE
ITRHEREESTEM R TIRHEREL
=12

+ AsiaSoft Company Limited & E3% LRI I3 A

C RZEZNFRZAERARRAIZES

Chief Financial Officer and

Company Secretary of the Company

+ Aged 48

+ Graduated from Lingnan College (now known as
Lingnan University) with a Honours Diploma in
Accountancy in 1984

+ Associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

+ Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom

+ Joined the Group in 1996 and appointed as director of
the Company in 1997

KRB BRERIRAUE

- BEM+NABR

- R AN\ERERERBR CREER
REB)  HEEFBREER

- BEGEHMAGZEE

- BERHFAREGHMAGZERER

s R AARENBEREBERR -t
FREZEARARRZES
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Profile of Directors

ESEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FkE#{TE S

¥

¥

Chairman of the Company

Aged 60

Graduated from Tsinghua University, PRC with a Master’s
Degree in Management Engineering

Chairman and director of Beijing Teamsun Technology
Co, Ltd. ("Teamsun”), the ultimate holding company of
the Group

Chairman of Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Co.
Ltd.

Independent director of China Distance Education
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
New York Stock Exchange

Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

EARZER

¥

¥

BENRTBR
EERTRBEAS FAEETRRAL
B

REBE 2 REER AR REBRKE
RERDERRR ([EBRK]) EERFR
B=%
EREBERMEERAEIARESR
ERERHE (EROHRERBHEFZ
SR LM ZBIESR
RIBENFREZARARAZES

Aged 44

Graduated from Tsinghua University, PRC and from the
Information and Electronic Engineering Department

of Zhejiang University, PRC with an Executive Master’s
Degree in Business Administration and a Master's Degree
in Semi-Conductor Materials and Microelectronic
Technology respectively

Vice chairman and president and director of Teamsun
Sole director of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited, the
immediate holding company of the Group

Awarded as AP B 811 2 FE 45 H (B 3K (China Software
Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur Laureate®) and &
B EE Z TN E) A W) (China Software Industry Prestige
Award Laureate®) by China Software Industry Association
in 2009

Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

REM+ B
EERPRFERBERHEINTAEE
BHEFTIRER DFIHESREREA
8 TR B IR AR £ B I R B
B RMELEM
EPRKRBEERFERNES
REBERERAREBRIBE (F
BIERAAIME—EFES
RE-ZZNFEDRERFITER SR
hE M EEGEH D ER R PR E
ENBAD
RIBENFREZARARAZES

Aged 34

Graduated from Peking University, PRC with a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration

Chief financial officer of Teamsun

Certified public accountant (intermediate level) of the
PRC

Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

RE=1TWBR
SERPEIERAR HSAETHERRL
B

ERBRKZ TR E
BRI E SR AD
RIBENFREZARARAZES




Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) & #t 5k B A R A 7]

Profile of Directors
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B EHITES

+ Aged 53
Graduated from University of South Australia, Australia

4

and Monash University, Australia with a Bachelor's
Degree in Business Administration Management and a
Master's Degree in Practising Accounting respectively
Director of Sun & Young Business Advisory Limited

4

Certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of

4

Certified Public Accountants
Certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia

4

Associate member of the Institute of Chartered

4

Secretaries and Administrators
Committee member of the Public Practice Committee

4

with CPA Australia — Hong Kong China Division
Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

4

\§

BER+=5
2 EFORINER AR Z R M Monash
University " D 5I#E THERET 24 K
WESHETEM
RIEEEAAARARES
BERGHANE 2 BEGA
SEME TR A g E G
REFHAWERITRAELAEEE
SENMERRAEPREESSFHDHEH
ﬁi,\aa,\
ZETNFREEZERRRFIZES

_

4

Aged 60
Graduated from Huazhong Institute of Technology

4

(currently known as Huazhong University of Science and
Technology), PRC and Tsinghua University, PRC with a
Bachelor's Degree in Engineering and a Master's Degree
in Management Engineering respectively

4

Chairman and managing director of Pearl River
Distribution Limited
Appointed as director of the Company in 2009

4

BERTR

EXNTEEP ISR (RBREDRE
RE)RHBIBERE HRHATRR
Br8UREETRBTSM
RINTEREERARARNEETRRAL
i

REBENFREERARAZES

_ _J
« Aged 54 WER TR
« PRC lawyer ‘:F‘ Bl 2D
+ Received education at the Civil, Commercial and —EENFEREBEREREEE
Economic Law School of the China University of Political ,f Bl SRR AR HER T ARE
Science and Law and completed 4% 2% B2 B S AT 55 ItREEEMEBAEERERA
A FR72 (the postgraduate program of economic law?) in RERARBGAHEEZILATEBESE
2009 +T-EZE8g%8
~« Officer and partner of Beijing Hengde Law Firm tEmEMreEs
« Committee member of the 11th National Committee of REZTENFREZERARFRZES
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Chaoyang District of Beijing
+ Supervisor of Beijing Municipal Law Association
+ Appointed as director of the Company in 2009 )

w

For identification purpose only

[EXE3= %]
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The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate governance to the
Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to identifying
and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate to the needs of its

business.

The Company's corporate governance practices are based on the principles
("Principles”) and code provisions (‘Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices ("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Company has complied with most of the
Code Provisions save for deviation from the Code Provisions in respect of Code
Provisions A.1.1, A.1.8, A4.1 and E.1.2, details of which are explained below. The
Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that these

continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of Directors (“Board")
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and transparency and

accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are

summarized as follows:

Responsibilities
The Company has formalized and adopted the written terms on the division of

functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans with a
view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day operations of the

Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company, including:
the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes to capital and
overall corporate structure, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant financial and

operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as the
advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board

procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited (& &) &t @A R A 7
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Responsibilities (Continued)

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior management. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the

abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior

management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience necessary for

independent decision making and fulfilling its business needs.
The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready

(Chief Executive Officer and Member of Management Committee)
Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon

(Chief Operating Officer* and Member of Management Committee)
Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward

(Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and

Member of Management Committee)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hu Liankui
(Chairman of the Board and Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Wang Weihang
(Chairman of Management Committee)
Mr. Chen Zhaohui

(Member of Audit Committee and Management Committee)

Annual Report 2010 £
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Composition (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Young Meng Ying
(Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Lu Jiaqi
(Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)
Ms. Xu Peng
(Member of Audit Committee)

*  Appointed on 18th February 2011.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from Ms. Young Meng
Ying, Mr. Lu Jiaqi, and Ms. Xu Peng of their independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers them to be independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules. Mr. Lu
Jiaqi will offer himself for re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and by a separate resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Board
recommended the proposal for his re-election as independent non-executive

director.

The non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors bring a
wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board meetings and affairs
of the Company, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict

of interests and serving on Board committees, all the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective

direction of the Company.
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Appointment of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent procedures for

the appointment of directors.

Code Provision A4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be appointed

for a specific term, subject to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company is appointed for a specific term. However, all
directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general

meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation, provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and any new director appointed to

fill a causal vacancy or as additional director shall be subject to re-election by

shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment of directors and assessing

the independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements

of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal
integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when

necessary.
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Appointment of Directors (Continued)
In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward, Mr. Hu
Liankui and Mr. Lu Jiagi shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these directors standing for re-

election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company's circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming annual general

meeting contains detailed information of the directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she
has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the

Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and

professional development to directors whenever necessary.

Board and Committee Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code Provision A.1.1 stipulates that the board should meet regularly and board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly

intervals.

Three regular Board meetings in total were held during the nine months ended
31st December 2010 to approve the annual results for the year ended 31st March
2010, first quarterly results for the three months ended 30th June 2010 and interim
results for the six months ended 30th September 2010 respectively. Board meetings

will be held on other occasions as needed.
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Board and Committee Meetings (Continued) EEEREFEEEER(H)

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued) BHEANUREFLEAE ()
REBZ-_ZT-—ZF+_A=+—BILIAA £ZF
EREFE HNZEERERZEEEH 2@
HEEsEE AT

The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of the Board,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee during the nine months ended

371st December 2010 is set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

RESEHANLE SETEBRY

Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EENE Exg FTHEES EREEY
Executive Directors BITES
Lai Yam Ting, Ready FEEE 3/3 N/A N/A
TE A T A
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon ZEN 3/3 N/A N/A
TEA TE A
Lau Ming Chi, Edward 288 E 3/3 N/A N/A
TEA TEA
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Hu Liankui [k ES 2/3 1/1 N/A
TEA
Wang Weihang T #EMm 3/3 N/A N/A
TiE A @A
Chen Zhaohui ek A 1 1/3 N/A 1/3
TE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYkHTES
Young Meng Ying 1SR BE 3/3 1/1 3/3
Lu Jiaqi e 52 B 3/3 1/1 3/3
Xu Peng iz 3/3 N/A 3/3
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Board and Committee Meetings (Continued)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors
at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,

reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days (or such other period as agreed)
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them
to make informed decisions. The Board and each director also have separate and

independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board
meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final

version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which involves a
conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company's Bye-
laws also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such

directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

Code Provision A.1.8 stipulates that if a substantial shareholder or a director who
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the board which the board
has determined to be material, the matter should not be dealt with by way of

circulation but a board meeting should be held.

Owing to urgency for approving the continuing connected transactions

between Beijing Teamsun Technology Co,, Limited (“Teamsun” together with its
subsidiaries, collectively “Teamsun Group”) and the Group (the “Transactions”) in
which the directors were considered interested directors by virtue of their current
shareholding, directorship and/or office with Teamsun Group (the “Interested
Directors”), the Transactions were dealt with by way of circulation of Board
resolutions (the “Board Resolutions”) for efficiency purposes. Please refer to the
Company's announcement and circular dated 6th October 2010 and 8th October
2010 respectively for the details of the Transactions under which the Interested

Directors abstained from approving the Board Resolutions.
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The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a balance of power and

authority.

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are currently
held by Mr. Hu Liankui and Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready respectively. Their respective

responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the

support of the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely

manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and
strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company's
day-to-day management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also
responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating the organizational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes for the Board's

approval.

The Board has established three committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Management Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
the Board committees are posted on the Company's website and are available to all

shareholders.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from time to time

to facilitate the Company's operations.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Hu Liankui and two independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying and Mr. Lu Jiagi. Mr. Hu

Liankui is the chairman of the Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of all directors and the senior management and share
options matters. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and

conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the annual remuneration
packages of all directors and the senior management and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration policy and

structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the nine months ended

31st December 2010. The works performed included the following:

(@) Toreview executive directors’ remuneration package.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises Mr. Chen Zhaohui and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng,
among them one independent non-executive director possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. Ms. Young Meng Ying is the chairman of the Committee. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company's existing

external auditors.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) Toreview the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal auditor or external

auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  Toreview the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the work
performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and

removal of external auditors.
() Toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system and

associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the nine months ended 31st

December 2010. The works performed included the following:

(@) Toreview the financial results and reports, financial reporting and

compliance procedures.

(b)  Toreview the reports from the external auditors, management letters and

management response.
() Toreview corporate governance matters.

(d)  Toreview the matters in relation to the internal control system and internal
audit.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding

the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors.

The Company's annual results for the nine months ended 31st December 2010

have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises Mr. Wang Weihang, Mr. Chen Zhaohui and
the three executive directors, namely Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready, Mr. Leung Tat Kwong,
Simon and Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward. Mr. Wang Weihang is the chairman of the

Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and reviewing
the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting, and making
recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies of the Group. The
Management Committee meets frequently, and as and when required to discuss

the related issues.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all directors and the directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the nine months period
ended 31st December 2010.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-

sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the

employees was noted by the Company.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, quarterly results, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other

regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial

statements of the Company for the nine months ended 31st December 2010.
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The statement of the external auditors of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s

Report” on page 47.

The non-audit work performed by the external auditors, Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers
included the tax advisory services. The remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditors of the Company in respect of audit services, audit-related services and
non-audit services for the nine months ended 31st December 2010 amounted to
approximately HK$ 1,522,000, HK$246,000 and HK$ 150,000 respectively.

The management is primarily responsible for designing, implementing and
maintaining internal controls, while the Board and Audit Committee review

the effectiveness of the controls. The internal control system includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority designed to achieve business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with
relevant rules and regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the

Company's objectives.

During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, the Board has reviewed

the effectiveness of internal control system of the Group. The review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. The Board in particular considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and

financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
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The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on resolutions
at shareholders’ meetings are contained in the Company’s Bye-laws. Details of
such rights to demand a poll and the poll procedures are included in all circulars to

shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Poll results will be published in accordance with the Listing Rules and posted on the

website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for communication

between the shareholders and the Board.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board should attend the

annual general meeting.

Mr. Hu Liankui, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 16th July 2010 due to other business

commitments.

Save as disclosed above, the Chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where applicable, the independent

Board committee, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial

issue, including the election of individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with

its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company's
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely

manner.
To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a website
at http://www.asl.com.hk , where extensive information and updates on the

Company's business developments and operations, financial information,

corporate governance practices and other information are posted.

On behalf of the Board

Lai Yam Ting, Ready
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10th March 2011
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for

the nine months ended 31st December 2010.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides corporate
management services. The principal activities of its associates and subsidiaries are

set out in notes 21 and 49, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to the completion of an acquisition of the controlling interest in

the Company by Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited (‘Hong Kong Teamsun”), a
subsidiary of Beijing Teamsun Technology Co. Limited (“Teamsun”), the financial
year end date of the Company has been changed from 31st March to 31st
December. Details were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 15th
July 2010.

The results of the Group for the nine months ended 31st December 2010 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 49.

An interim dividend of 4.0 HK cents per share amounting to HK$12,456,000 was
paid to the shareholders during the nine months ended 31st December 2010. The
directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 4.0 HK cents per share. The
proposed dividend will be paid to the shareholders on the register of members on
19th April 2011, amounting to HK$12,456,000, and the remaining profit be retained

for the nine months ended 31st December 2010.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the nine months ended 31st
December 2010 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on

pages 54 to 55 of the consolidated financial statements.

At 31st December 2010, the Group's special reserve and accumulated profits
totalled HK$254,192,000 (31st March 2010: HK$231,545,000).

The Company's reserves available for distribution to the shareholders at 31st
December 2010 include contributed surplus net of accumulated losses totaling
HK$85,935,000 (31st March 2010: HK$85,273,000).
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During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, the Group spent
approximately HK$ 11,040,000 (Twelve months ended 31st March 2010
HK$16,666,000) on property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the nine months ended 31st
December 2010 in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note

18 to the consolidated financial statements.

The percentage of the Group's purchases and sales attributable to major suppliers

and customers are as follows:

During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, the five largest customers and
single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 17.8% and 5.1%,
respectively, of the Group's revenue. The five largest suppliers and single largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 40.6% and 14.4%, respectively,

of the Group's purchases.

At no time during the nine months ended 31st December 2010 did a director, an
associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an

interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Movements during the nine months ended 31st December 2010 in share capital of

the Company are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company during the nine months ended 31st December 2010

and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Lai Yam Ting, Ready
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon

Lau Ming Chi, Edward
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Non-executive Directors
Hu Liankui

Wang Weihang

Chen Zhaohui

Independent Non-executive Directors
Young Meng Ying

Lu Jiaqi

Xu Peng

In accordance with the Company's Bye-law 99, Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward, Mr.
Hu Liankui and Mr. Lu Jiagi shall be retiring by rotation, and being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the period up to his
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of

director of the Company are set out below:

Name of director

ExpE

Detail of changes

BEHE

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon
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Mr. Leung has been appointed as Chief Operating Officer of the Company effective 18th February 2011. He is no

longer the chief executive officer of AsiaSoft Company Limited.
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Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding companies
or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the nine months ended 31st December 2010 or at any time during the nine

months ended 31st December 2010.
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Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”),
during the nine months ended 31st December 2010, the following directors were
considered to have interests in the businesses which competed or were likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, particulars

of which are set out below:

Name of the entities

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) & s @A R A 7
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EFEWmE

REEBBHERZIMBERRR (B ESLT
AT EFRAN) EI0GRE WEBE-T—FF
TZA=Z+t—RLEAEAR A TEEHAR/EE
FRAEREARERGENBFRALERAEEE
BHRBF2EBTEARER A ER7mT:

which were considered to
compete or likely to

compete with the businesses

Description of businesses of
the entities which were considered to
compete or likely to compete

application software development, value-added

application software development, value-added

of the Group with the businesses of the Group
Name of director RAELEEXBERR RAELEEXBERITEBEARFEZ
EEpns TREBHBE2ERER o 32
Hu Liankui Teamsun Information technology product service,
distribution and system integration
liES FEFRK BB EmRY - R AEA %
BEDHEMRGES
Beijing Huasun Mingtian Information technology related
Technology Co. Ltd.
L REBIB AR HEE AR
EREERA
Wang Weihang Teamsun Information technology product service,
distribution and system integration
T HEMT FE R BB EMRY - EREAERE-

Leung Tat Kwong,

Hong Kong Teamsun

BEEBRK

AsiaSoft Company Limited and

EESHERGES

Window company of Teamsun in Hong Kong and
mainly provides administrative support to the
clients of Teamsun in the PRC and Hong Kong

EBRKEEEEAAR EEREBRKZ
BERRPEREBRMITRUE

Information technology related

Nature of
director’s interest
in the entities
EENZEERZ
EEME

Chairman and director

EERFEE

Chairman

BER

Vice chairman and president,
director, and a substantial
shareholder

BESERFRY EER
FERR

Sole director

M—EE

Director and/or a substantial
shareholder

Simon its subsidiaries
RiEN AsiaSoft Company Limited R B 1B & FAEH

G e

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid companies,

and as none of the above directors controls the Board, the Group is capable of
carrying on its business independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses

of the aforesaid companies.

B REERE

HREFEBYN LM AR ZEETE ML LEEH
BEHESS AEET BN LRRRZEBIA
RNPEFEARREER -
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As at 31st December 2010, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

("Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows:

Shares
Personal Family
Name of company Director interests interests
AREW Bz BARE  RkER
Automated Systems Holdings Limited Lai Yam Ting, Ready 3,949,621 -
BREREEERAR BER
Automated Systems (HK) Limited Lai Yam Ting, Ready 1,070,000’ -
BERG (BA)BRAF e
Teamsun Hu Liankui 25,352,963 -
EBRK i E
Wang Weihang 53,810,630 -
THAM
Chen Zhaohui 1,320,000 -
fREE
Notes:
1. These shares were non-voting deferred shares.

2. The issued shares of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited comprised 55,350,000 non-
voting deferred shares and 2 ordinary shares. The 2 ordinary shares were beneficially
owned by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2010, none of the directors and
the chief executives of the Company had any Directors’ Interests in Shares and

Underlying Shares.

RZE—ZF+_A-+—H EERARAEE
THRABRART REEMBEREE (EERES
&%Ef PIEEXVER) 2 B fn - RN RIEFF A

ﬂiﬁé B5 M A ERGIEXVE BT RN SAME
$ 2P 2w ok B (B IR R B E 5 &
EMEZﬁ@MXW“W&mﬁﬁ%EZ%\&M
B) i SRR E %&ﬂgﬁw%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁm%
G ETi 2 B e Mz s RO B - SR(ORIE LT AT
A§$Lﬁﬁ%x%mFETWUﬁ E<FRIL) ZAH
SARRNBNRBRT 2w RAR([ESZRD RE
By 2 =] an T

—

g
Corporate Approximate %
interests Other Total of shareholding
DEER Hity st RESNEDI L
- - 3,949,621 1.27%
- - 1,070,000 N/A?
ek
- - 25352963 4.99%
- - 53810630 10.61%
- - 1,320,000 0.26%

B2t

L WEROABERFEELER-

2. BE X5 (BE)BRQF 2B EHTRE 55350000
RS 45 AR T AR e 2B X R AR o A2 BB A D
AIESEER -

%LY%M%%HK T-EF+ A=+ #
BEENARAEIBETRABRAETAEEZHN
&ﬁ%hh2%§°
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The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 16th October
1997 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to any employee and/
or director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The Scheme was terminated
and a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to

a resolution passed in the general meeting held on 8th August 2002 in order to
comply at the time with the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules which
became effective on 1st September 2001. Details of the Scheme and the New

Scheme are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

No option has been granted under the New Scheme during the nine months
ended 31st December 2010. There was no share option outstanding at 31st

December 2010.

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Schemes” above, at no time during the
nine months ended 31st December 2010 was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements

to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.
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During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, the Group entered into the
following transactions with its fellow subsidiaries, holding company and ultimate

holding company which constituted connected transactions (the “Connected

Transactions”) under the Listing Rules:

Set out below are the Connected Transactions which have occurred during the nine
months ended 31st December 2010 pursuant to the Supply Agreement entered

into between Teamsun and the Company on 6th October 2010.

Name of company

DNAEH

Guangzhou Headway Technology Co. L.td.
BME@ERAR A

Nanjing Teamsun Information Technology Co,, Ltd.

AREBRKEERMERA

Teamsun

EBRK

Hong Kong Teamsun

BEREBRK

The above Connected Transactions are subject to various annual cap amounts

Annual Report 2010 £

REEZZ-—ZTF+_A=+—HIEAEAR &
%IﬁﬁﬂgmgﬂT% & A A7) R B AR R RR A 7]
EITERE FHRAEKEERS ([BEXS5]) 2
REWT:

TREFIBBEBRAKERRBR-Z—FF+ AR
HiZ 2 HERERNBE T TF T - A=1—

HIENEAET2RER S -
Description of the Connected Transactions Amount
BEXS 2Hl 8
HK$'000
TR
Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 278
FEBREREGAZNG 2 &8
Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 492
REERERANINZERE
Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 75
REEFRRBENI Nz e
Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contract 12
REERRBEHWR s 25
Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 82
REERRBEEHOXIN R
THBERSEEFARBRMR_E—EF T A

disclosed in the Company's circular dated 8th October 2010. Capitalised terms
used in the section headed "Connected Transactions” above shall have the same

meanings as those defined in the above circular unless specified otherwise.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000, ‘Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740, ‘Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules’
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance with
Listing Rule 14A.38.

AEZ@@ﬁﬁz%ﬁiiiﬁ°%mﬁE%%%’
EXRER S| —HiR A 2 R EliE kAT EE
#FRMBR%E -

AREZBMEEEERESSSHMASE LN
BB RAREER 30005 (B REHNESLMHE
BHASMRAE RIS | - R 2 Z T8 S E7405% [1R 1R
B AR RIEE A B 38 A2 5 A% BRI ER 1 ] DA BE SR,
REEBERS - ZEENERIE 8 BIE 1443815
HASRBERRG AGREHAEEDREN
B PR ERTBLE
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All of the independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed and

confirmed that the above Connected Transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there are no sufficient
comparables, on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms available to

or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

As at 31st December 2010, so far as is known to the directors and chief executives of
the Company, the interests and short positions of every person, other than directors
or chief executives of the Company in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

shares of the Company held

Number of ordinary

Automated Systems Holdings Limited (& &) &t @A R A 7
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EXEWmE

ARA2EBUFATESCENRER LiH
BERZH]Y:

() HEARAAER-REBHBIETET:

(i) R REEETET MU |RHZFHATLL
B AREAEETE TERRETBILE
= REBLE =T REZGTET R

(i) ERERXHZBEGEZ GFTETT  ZIERTD
BLAFABIFERRABRR 2 BEAE-

R-ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—B REETRAQFE
BITRABMA THAL (ARRESREBITR
ABBRIN AR QR Z AP S ABRA R (5 R B IR IR 75
FHREAE RO EXVERE 2R3N EBARMA R HEZ
ERFKR

Percentage of

issued share capital

REFEZEBRROHE %
HBITREZ

Name of shareholder Direct interest Deemed interest Aok
RREB HEER BRAER %
Hong Kong Teamsun 203,532,996 - 654
NS PN
Teamsun - 203,532,996 654
FERERBK
Note: B EE

1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Teamsun and
was therefore deemed to be interested in the 203,532,996 shares in which Hong Kong

Teamsun was interested.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2010, there was no other person
(other than the directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO.

EBRAKRBEBEBRKEHEOETRAPESE
o B AR VE P B A BE B R B T 7B 25 2. 203,532,996
RERARID P HE B Ak ek o

BEMFiEN RZE—FTF+_A=+—8 ¥
EAEMEMALT (RRAESREZTHRABRIN
RARB 2 ROKBER D P EARIBEFRAE
1RPIEXVEDE2R35 B 2 IR X RN B R ER 2 1

S4B Al
mIRE -
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During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed

securities.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

The Company has complied throughout the nine months ended 31st December
2010 with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14

of the Listing Rules except as noted below:

(@)  with respect to Code A.1.1, there were three regular Board meetings held
during the nine months ended 31st December 2010 under review for
approving the annual results for the year ended 31st March 2010, first
quarterly results for the three months ended 30th June 2010 and interim
results for the six months ended 30th September 2010 respectively. Board

meetings will be held on other occasions as needed;

(b)  with respect to Code A.1.8, owing to urgency for approving the continuing
connected transactions between Teamsun and its subsidiaries (“Teamsun
Group”) and the Group (the “Transactions”) in which the directors were
considered interested directors by virtue of their current shareholding,
directorship and/or office with Teamsun Group (the “Interested Directors”),
the Transactions were dealt with by way of circulation of Board resolutions
(the "Board Resolutions”) for efficiency purposes. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement and circular dated 6th October 2010 and 8th
October 2010 respectively for the details of the Transactions under which the

Interested Directors abstained from approving the Board Resolutions;

%

BE_Z-ZHF+-_A=+—RLAMEAR K
NC] Tﬁﬁcﬂf‘ﬁ% ANERE HEXBEOAL
AR i

EARBZ AR BREET  WEARR
HARRHZLPIMRBRREEN R 2 BERBRE
LR

ARFRBE-_ZT—ZEF+-_A=+—BILh@HA
N—EET ETRBME4TE 2 KEERERER
STRD BRI

(F) FRIFALENE REE-T-FTF+ =
A=+— EIJJ:IEEE)MIHW ARRRITZR
THEFg S UDRMtERE—T—TF
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() with respect to Code A4.1, all non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation

and re-election in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws; and

(d)  with respect to Code E.1.2, Mr. Hu Liankui, the Chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 16th

July 2010 due to other business commitments.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors confirmed they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

nine months ended 31st December 2010.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors,
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-executive

directors are independent.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the directors confirmed that the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the nine months ended 31st
December 2010.

The Audit Committee met three times in the nine months ended 31st December
2010. During the meetings, the Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management the connected transactions, accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group including the review of the annual results, interim and
quarterly results, and discussed various auditing, financial reporting and internal

control matters.

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & s @A R A 7

Directors’ Report

EEEWmE

(R) ETRIFA4LVEM S NABZEIFNTES
B 3FiR e EEHﬂﬁﬁéiffv HEZAIR B AR 2B 4 Al
ZHERESRYEREET K

(T) BFRISFEI21EM S - %%ﬁiféﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%i
MREMEREE Al FER-_E—ZF
A+RABETZ Li%%ﬂiﬁ%o

ARREERA TR BN 0PFE 2 R F Rl - AR
AEREENEE_ZT-ZF+-_A=+—RH1LAN
BHARDEETEETAELRSH 2REFHE
RFIE 2 BT ETRIFTRE 2 2R

RARBEESELIFRITEERE EHRRIZE3.13
1 XZiﬁﬁuﬂ% ﬁ@u/u/\gﬁi‘ﬁ KRBREE
BEUFMITERRBEILAL

REBARAARHERCENRBEEMAM EF
BERARFRBE_Z-TF+_A=+t—HB1LAh
BEAR—ERFABZARFERE -

EREEEEOREE_T—ZF+-A= + =hs
NEARBIT=ZREH - %ﬁ@ésﬁa ERESR
BEER S URAEERN g5 \,JJ&L ol (8
REMFEEE THRFEREE) THEEREN
wmETIRE MR RANSBEERER-



Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) & s M AR A 7 Annual Report 2010 £

Directors’ Report

EFXEHmE

During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, the Group made charitable

donations amounting to HK$41,035.

In November 2009, the Company's former auditors Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
resigned as auditors of the Company, and Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers were
appointed as auditors of the Company. Apart from this, there has been no change

of auditors of the Company in any of the three preceding years. A resolution will be
tabled in the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers

as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LAl Yam Ting, Ready
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10th March 2011
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AUTOMATED SYSTEMS HOLDINGS LIMITED
BBRAREESRAA

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 49 to 153, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the nine months
ended 31 December 2010, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial

statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

BERKEE BT
At PERK TR E T
Tk ¢ (852) 2289 8888

fH3 : (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B HERE

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and
of the Group's profit and cash flows for the nine months ended 31st December
2010 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10 March 2011
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 B E =& —

Continuing operations

Revenue

Cost of goods sold

Cost of services rendered

Other income

Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance income

Share of results of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit from continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Profit from discontinued operations

Annual Report 2010 4F 3%
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Profit for the period/year attributable to 28 22 B R A& FH A

equity holders of the Company

Dividends
Special dividend
Interim dividend
Final dividend

Earnings per share from continuing
and discontinued operations
attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Basic earnings per share
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

Diluted earnings per share
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations

The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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For the

nine months ended
31st December
2010
BE-Z—ZF
+=A=+-—H
WFHfEAR
HK$’000

FHET

994,509
(510,438)
(354,871)

4,534

5,800
(52,601)
(43,657)

681
224

44,181
(9,648)

34,533

34,533

12,456

HK cents
AL

11.09

11.09

11.09

11.09

%1538 2 MIFERERK

For the

twelve months ended
31st March

2010

T I
:ﬂf+*ﬁ
E+=18A
HKS$'000

FHET
(restated)

(&%)

Note 2(d)

Bt 3E2(d)

1,329,982
(738,832)
(433,096)

6,870

3,590
(66,410)
(50,717)

516

1,714

53,617
(9,857)

43,760

72,598

116,358

286,491

HK cents
il
(restated)
(231)
Note 2(d)
L IG)

14.24
23.60

37.84

14.21
2357

37.78

FRMBRRZ AR
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 E =T —ZT 4 +-_A=+—B 1L @A

Profit for the period/year

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Revaluation surplus of leasehold land
and buildings

Deferred taxation arising from
revaluation surplus of leasehold land
and buildings

Exchange differences on translation of

overseas operations

Total comprehensive income for the
period/year attributable to equity
holders of the Company

The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

Annual Report 2010 £

Notes

Bt 5%
8 FRER
Hitz2mEkzE(8E)
HETH RIEFSHAH

18
HETHREFEHALK
EEZELERIE

36

BEBIEHCELER

FRARREFE ARG,

FREHEW A

For the

nine months ended
31st December
2010
BE-_Z-2F
+=A=+—H
LERfEA
HK$’000

FHERT

34,533

32,196

(5,312)

1,645

63,062

HAS7E F1538 2 M sEE K
ﬁ}%\

For the

twelve months ended
31st March

2010
HE_T—TF
EA=EF—E
IE+=@A
HKS'000

THET
(restated)

(&5)

Note 2(d)

B EE2(d)

116,358

19418

(3,204)

727

133,299

FRMBRRZ AR
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mEEERAER

At 31st December 2010 R = ZE—ZT4+=-A=+—0H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Trade receivables

Finance lease receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Finance lease receivables

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Amounts due from customers for
contract work

Restricted bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Total equity

The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

FREEE

M - BB kR
TEYZE
ERAE
RN 3
FEWE 558

JE W b 3 FH B FIE

FRBEE
HE
R B 50R

8 i 4 T R

Hip 8  2e &

TAR FIE

BHTRREEEF A

R HNRITER
RekREeEFEY

HEE

KRB RAEFFH AELER

LN
B3 (B B
Gk

RS

Notes

B E

18(a)
19
20(a)
21
26
27

25
26
27
28
29

30
30

31

32(a)

ERALYES
ﬂ iy
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As at As at
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
R-E—ZF RZT—FF
+=A=+—H =A= + —H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
(restated)

(271)

Note 2(d)

Bt 3E2(d)

162,907 130,827
24,700 18,900
900 700
1,865 3,095
1,869 627
3,210 -
195,451 154,149
76,972 101,820
163,722 147,924
1,914 -
23,605 27,019
161,659 90,423
1,924 29,538
195,552 279,988
625,348 676,712
820,799 830,861
31,140 31,140
104,947 104,947
321,154 269,978
457,241 406,065

F153 B Z M EEBAAR & M 5 R 2 N Al ek
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

At 31st December 2010 R —E—ZF4E+=-HA=+—H

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Receipts in advance

Current income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

As at
31st December
2010
R-ZZE—ZF
+=A=+-~8
Notes HKS$'000
b= FET
FRBEE
BEFSHAE 36 17,996
PEIEU A 73
18,069
REBAE
EE 538 33 193,000
Huh kB R ERT &R 34 48,190
TE Yl 2= 35 91,979
BNEAFT SR AL fE 12,320
345,489
wes 363,558
HEZREE 820,799
REEEFE 279,859
BEERRBEE 475,310
LAl Yam Ting, Ready LAU Ming Chi, Edward
BEE 23575
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
HITEFFTHABH HNITEFF Y HABE

HAS7E F1538 2 M i B AR

EREB D

As at

31st March
2010
RZTE—ZF
=A=+—H~
HK$'000
FHT
(restated)
(&351)

Note 2(d)

B EE2(d)

10,464
24

10,488

189,850
52,287
166,855
5316

414,308

424,796

830,861

262,404

416,553

MEHRZ A K
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At 31st December 2010 R = ZE—ZT4+=-A=+—0H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Share capital

Share premium

Reserves

Total equity

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a subsidiary

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
UERN NS
BIVEE
NI N s

REBEE

H i fEUCTRIR - & K
B 5RIR
8 X B R AR

R MReEEE

HWEE

RRRREFE AL,
A fE

PR

B3 (B B

Gk

i

RBAE

HAth e FRIE R R E A
R—EIM B R RIFHIA

mEE
HERRAE
RBEEFHE

BEERRBAE

LAl Yam Ting, Ready
HEE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
HITEFFTHARH

The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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As at
31st December
2010
R=Z—ZF
+=A=+—8
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FHERT
18(b) 1,878
20(b) 500
23 134,623
137,001
28 360
24 88,228
30 8,240
96,828
233,829
31 31,140
104,947
32(b) 85,935
222,022
34 11,339
24 468
11,807
11,807
233,829
85,021
222,022
LAU Ming Chi, Edward
238 &
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
HITEFF HAEE

As at

31st March
2010
RZZE—FF
—A=+—8
HK$'000
FHT

6,803
300
134,623

141,726

609
82,887
5,793

89,289

231,015

31,140
104,947
85,273
221,360
9314
341

9,655

9,655

231,015

79,634

221,360

FNS7EF 1538 2 MBSV B IHR 2 AR

ERER D o
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EXN 2 g2y
BAERBBE

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 B & —F —

ZE+-_A=+—RBLEAEA

Special
reserve
Share Share (Note (1))
capital  premium  ¥FBIGE
BE ROBEE  (FE0))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THL FET TEL
At 1st April 2009 R-ZZZENEMA-AH 29743 78,944 34,350
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year FRE
- as previously stated —RRIFAA = = =
~effectof change inaccounting  — B HKEB /¥ 2
policy (Note 2(d)) (MizEd) - - -
- as restated — &7 = = =
Other comprehensive Hth2ElE
income/(loss): (F#8):
Revaluation surplus of HETHREFER
leasehold land R4
and buildings = = =
Deferred taxation arising HETHREFER
from revaluation BARES ZERHE
surplus of leasehold land
and buildings = = =
Exchange differences on ACHELIE 3
translation of overseas EHER
operations - - -
Total comprehensive ER2ERREH
income for the year = = =
Transactions with owners HEEAZRS
Exercise of share options TR R IR 1397 26,003 =
Recognition of equity-settled BRRRAEEUR R
share-based payments SARPAE S - - -
Special dividend for REBZ_ZTNE
the twelve months ended =A=+—AL
31t March 2009 paid TZEARRKRE
(Note 15) (FrzE15) = = =
Transfer to retained eamings BRERAET
(Note 3(t) Gz = - -
Total transactions with owners B A 2R 548 1397 26003 -
At31st March 2010 R=Z2-%F
=A=t+-H 31,140 104,947 34,350

The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

Property
revaluation
reserve
LIES
EffE
HK$'000
THL

20587

19418

(3,204)

16214

36,801

Translation
reserve
EEfE
HK$'000
FET

905

727

727

1,632

Share
options
reserve

BRERE
HKS'000
THT

6,639

361

(7,000)

(6,639)

Retained
earnings
REEH
HK$'000
TAT
(restated)
(E51)
Note 2(d)
Fit3E2(d)

360,328

115,766

592

116,358

116,358

(286491)

7,000

(279491)

197,195

Total
ot o]
HK$'000
FET
(restated)
(Z31)
Note 2(d)
MiEE2d)

531,49

115,766

592

116,358

19418

(3,204)

721
133,299

27400

361

(286491)

(258,730)

406,065

BRS7TEE1538 2 Ml AR & IS lRKR 2 Al sk

fREB S
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 &2 —Z—ZTHF+-_A=+—HIL @A

Special Property
reserve  revaluation Share
Share Share (Note (i) reserve  Translation options Retained
capital  premium  HFRIEE M reserve reserve earnings Total
BRA ROBER () EfRE ESRE BRERE REEF ot
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THIT THET THT THIT THT THT THIT THT
At 1st April 2010 R-ZZ-Z5MA-H
- as previously stated — RIS 31,140 104947 34350 36,801 1632 - 196,603 405473
—effectof changeinaccounting  —EFTHREE 2 ¥ 2
policy (Note 2(d) (HizE20)) - - - - - - 592 592
- as restated —7 31,140 104,947 34,350 36,801 1,632 - 197,195 406,065
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Profit for the period BRI - - - - - - 34533 34533
Other comprehensive Hit2ENE/
income/(loss): (B8
Revaluation surplus of HELTHRET
leasehold land and ERRp
buildings - - - 32,19 - - - 32,19
Deferred taxation arising HELHRETF
from revaluation EMRBELE
surplus of leasehold land ZBER A
and buildings - - - (5312) - - - (5312)
Exchange differences on BEBNEKZ
translation of overseas EREE
operations - - - - 1,645 - - 1,645
Total comprehensive HR2EKSAHE
income for the period - - - 26,884 1,645 - 34,533 63,062
Transactions with owners BEEAZRS
Forfeiture of unclaimed RUAR B E
dividends - - - - - - 570 570
Interim dividend for EEHE-Z-3
the nine months ended +ZA=+—HLt
315t December 2010 SR A AR ERRR 2. - - - = = = (12456) (12456)
Total transactions with owners  EEAAZR ZAH = = = = = = (11,886) (11,886)
At 31st December 2010 RZE-Zf
+ZA=1+-H 31,140 104,947 34,350 63,685 3,277 - 219,842 457,241
Note (i)  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal MG AEEZERFEHEENR-—NANEERARRNG LW

value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group reorganisation
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1997.

The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

AEITEEBAR - RKE 2B RRBEHITRN
ZEfE B ZREMETOARB RO ZEE
MEZRZE®E-

BNS7EF153A 2 B AR & B HER 2 Nl sk
EREB D
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AN
IIVj_\ IE kY 72 /)|b

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 & &

g%

E-_F-—FF+-_A=+—RLEAEA

For the For the
nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-ZF BHE —ZF
+=—A=+—8 =H= Jr =Nl
IEA@EA +=@A
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT FHT
Operating activities R
Cash (used in)/generated REEE 7S (),
from operations A 39 (64,160) 75815
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEENEH - (17,537)
Overseas taxation paid B sMEIE (420) (784)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEEIHE (XH),/
operating activities LPN:2:] (64,580) 57,494
Investing activities REEE
Purchases of property, plant BEME  BE k&
and equipment 18(a) (11,040) (16,666)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  HER
property, plant and equipment REATSRE 39(@a) 308 243
Proceeds from disposal of HERKEERBER
the GMS business FT15 3018 45 - 125,007
Interest received B U F & 8 333 942
Dividends received from BE S A A S E 2 IR R
interests in associates 21 1,454 -
Expenses directly attributable to HERKERREHES 2
the disposal of the GMS business BEEEGER - (14,415)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REFZHZ2HE (XH)
investing activities LPN:2:] (8,945) 95,111
Financing activities B SEE
Dividends paid B E 15 (12,456) (286,491)
Proceeds from issuance of shares BRI TR R T
upon exercise of share options EE S - 27,400
Net cash used in financing activities @EEFBH 2R S HBHE (12,456) (259,091)
Net decrease in cash and ReRkBRSEEBM 2B FHE
cash equivalents (85,981) (106,486)
Cash and cash equivalents B FOzRERESEED
at the beginning of the period/year 279,988 385,953
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4N [ =R % 1,545 521
Cash and cash equivalents B/ FR2BERIBESEED
at the end of the period/year 30 195,552 279,988
The notes on pages 57 to 153 are an integral part of these consolidated financial HN7EF 1538 2 B G E s HREk 2 el sk

statements.
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e B RS R AR B R

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 EE =T —ZT 4 +-_A=+—HIL @A

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company

with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At 31st December 2010, its immediate
holding company is Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited (‘Hong Kong
Teamsun”), a company established in Hong Kong and its ultimate holding
company is Beijing Teamsun Technology Co,, Limited (“Teamsun”), a company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and listed on The
Shanghai Stock Exchange in the PRC. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum

Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is principally an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of

its associates and subsidiaries are set out in notes 21 and 49, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated, which is also the
functional currency of the Company. These consolidated financial statements

have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 10th March 2011.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of leasehold land and

buildings and investment properties.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are

significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Pursuant to a board resolution passed on 15th July 2010, the Company
changed its financial year end date from 31st March to 31st December to

align with that of Teamsun, the ultimate holding company of the Company.

ARRRBREIMA LA —RIHEER
NI EHXT’J?E%@%E@?QX%F)?%@LE )
RED) Em-R=ZZT—ZTF+_A=1+—8H"
HEEERARANEBN L 2 EBRKE
&(ﬁfﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ (IBEBEBAK]) KHE
RIRER AR BN FEARKEME RN EEF
HFR G E 2t REBRKEERBERA
Al ([EBREK]) cARARzAMPEREREE
& B 2 ik Bl A Canon's Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda & & 7 ¥7 52 B
ZLEI RN E S 1518 -

AR EBREREER AR MIREARERE
RETEMBAR HBARMBARZEERE
¥ 2 B0 RIFI A MI 21 K49 ©

B S AR HARBREIINET (Fb
7E) 231 BT BAR R 2N - AR
BRROEEEERN-T——F= A+AHE
g

RRFZFEPBHRRIBBERBHEREE
A ([BEMBRELER ) REL - REMHRER
TRBE L AL RE WEREE L2
FUARKEYR 2 BETMAE -

RENEBBUBREER 2R M BRRE
RERETHRE G - EREREEER
ERASEZ @t BERKITEEHE - F &
EHIE SR S0 R S R M TS IR T = 8
BERZ BB R b5 DB R 4 EE -

BER-_Z—ZFLATHEBBCrEEE
RBER ARAEHEVBRFELEEREA=A
=t+—BEXAtT=-ZA=1+—8 #tmaELRQ
Rl BEERAREBRK ZEE R —B

I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR MEE

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 2 ZZ—ZTHF +_A=+—HIE @A

As a result of the change, the current period financial statements were made
up of a nine months period from 1st April 2010 to 31st December 2010,
therefore the comparative amounts for the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow
statement and related notes, which covered a twelve months period from 1st

April 2009 to 31st March 2010, are not directly comparable.

(@) The following revised standards and new amendments to standards
are mandatory for the first time for the financial period beginning 1st

April 2010 and are relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 3 (revised), ‘Business combinations’, and consequential
amendments to HKAS 27, ‘Consolidated and separate financial
statements’, HKAS 28, ‘Investments in associates’, and HKAS
31, ‘Interests in joint ventures', are effective prospectively to
business combinations for which the acquisition date is on

or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period

beginning on or after 1st July 2009.

The revised standards continue to apply the acquisition method
to business combinations but with some significant changes
compared with HKFRS 3. For example, all payments to purchase
a business are recorded at fair value at the acquisition date,
with contingent payments classified as debt subsequently re-
measured through the statement of comprehensive income.
There is a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to
measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share

of the acquiree’s net assets.

HKAS 27 (revised) requires the effects of all transactions with
non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer result

in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies

the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest

in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. HKAS 27 (revised) has had no impact
on the current period, as none of the non-controlling interests
have a deficit balance; there have been no transactions whereby
an interest in an entity is retained after the loss of control of
that entity, and there have been no transactions with non-

controlling interests.

EEE’WEHjL—IEEEEAZ EIEE MR RE—F
—ZFONA—BE-ZE—ZF+=-A=+—H
LEAUfELA HAfE .ﬁt/\—gghiﬁmﬂiai
TE-EE=-A=+—HIE T EAASEZA
Gk FE2HERAR RERERER
FAARMEAZ LR SN E T E R

(a) %_%*%Eﬂﬂfﬂﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
B R GR hBR A N B SR B AR RE 2 IS 1E R
ER/ RFERTERIAT -

&8 B A 2 R S35 (18R]
[XBa0t] RALMEEESLE
AIF275% [ 476 R B RIBI B3Rk |
BB g AT BI85 708 & 1A A
Z%xﬁj MEBEFHERFE3R (R

B ziER ] ERRNEE R
F%Eﬁ% BN —ZETNFEA—H
FE Rz BEFERE BRFEK
IR EBA B

ST ER BB TS E OHER
BEA BEE BT BHREENES
LS BETERER - Hln- B
B2 A TR AR S B
ZARBELE MOBEABEZ
FANRERBEREEREREF
T2 BB URIE S 2 IEE R R
= RERREERIEAAEE
B FEH2R AR 25 12 b 1) PE R A UK BB
ZEREEGE

BRGRTERIE275 (BRI RE
A0 4 3 B B S - ) B R
*iﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ?&%zﬁyaz\ﬁﬁﬁﬁé

BmHIH MEERXZ B TBESE
A2k a A e 18 - % XE R TR 51 BR
REZEGIER 2 G5 RIETE
ERAZ MR ER Bz’&ftf‘iﬁ
B E WHERSETER S
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& MEB G ERIE275 (BF])
W EHAHMEER T E - BREEE
HES ZT HIERINR R L E B
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 & & =% —

(b) New and amended standards, and interpretations are mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010 and do not
have material financial impact on the Group's consolidated financial

information:

HK(IFRIC) 17, ‘Distribution of non-cash assets to owners’,
effective on or after 1st July 2009. The interpretation was
published in November 2008. This interpretation provides
guidance on accounting for arrangements whereby an

entity distributes non-cash assets to shareholders either as

a distribution of reserves or as dividends. HKFRS 5 has also

been amended to require that assets are classified as held for
distribution only when they are available for distribution in their

present condition and the distribution is highly probable.

HK(IFRIC) 18, Transfers of assets from customers’, effective

for transfer of assets received on or after 1st July 2009.

This interpretation clarifies the requirements of HKFRSs for
agreements in which an entity receives from a customer an item
of property, plant and equipment that the entity must then use
either to connect the customer to a network or to provide the
customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services
(such as a supply of electricity, gas or water). In some cases, the
entity receives cash from a customer that must be used only to
acquire or construct the item of property, plant, and equipment
in order to connect the customer to a network or provide the
customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services
(or to do both).

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) & £t 52 @A R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e KRR MEE

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 2 ZZ—ZTHF +_A=+—HIE @A

(b) New and amended standards, and interpretations are mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010 and do not
have material financial impact on the Group's consolidated financial

information: (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) 9, ‘Reassessment of embedded derivatives and HKAS
39, Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement’,
effective 1st July 2009. This amendment to HK(IFRIC) 9 requires
an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative should be
separated from a host contract when the entity reclassifies a
hybrid financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss’
category. This assessment is to be made based on circumstances
that existed on the later of the date the entity first became a
party to the contract and the date of any contract amendments
that significantly change the cash flows of the contract. If the
entity is unable to make this assessment, the hybrid instrument
must remain classified as at fair value through profit or loss in its

entirety.

HK(IFRIC) 16, ‘Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation’,
effective 1st July 2009. This amendment states that, in a hedge
of a net investment in a foreign operation, qualifying hedging
instruments may be held by any entity or entities within the
Group, including the foreign operation itself, as long as the
designation, documentation and effectiveness requirements

of HKAS 39 that relate to a net investment hedge are satisfied.

In particular, the Group should clearly document its hedging
strategy because of the possibility of different designations at
different levels of the Group. HKAS 38 (amendment), ‘Intangible
assets’, effective 1st January 2010. The amendment clarifies
guidance in measuring the fair value of an intangible asset
acquired in a business combination and permits the grouping of
intangible assets as a single asset if each asset has similar useful

economic lives.

(b)
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(b) New and amended standards, and interpretations are mandatory for (b) BR-_Z—ZT40MA—HMHKBZHKEF
the first time for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010 and do not & EIRGR HIER AN 3R] RASSETAER » A

have material financial impact on the Group's consolidated financial R#2E BEAEE GG MEER T E
information: (Continued) ERERT L (&)

HKAS 1 (@amendment), ‘Presentation of financial statements’. The
amendment clarifies that the potential settlement of a liability
by the issue of equity is not relevant to its classification as current
or non current. By amending the definition of current liability,
the amendment permits a liability to be classified as non-current
(provided that the entity has an unconditional right to defer
settlement by transfer of cash or other assets for at least 12
months after the accounting period) notwithstanding the fact
that the entity could be required by the counterparty to settle in

shares at any time.

HKAS 36 (amendment), Impairment of assets’, effective 1st
January 2010. The amendment clarifies that the largest cash-
generating unit (or group of units) to which goodwill should be
allocated for the purposes of impairment testing is an operating
segment, as defined by paragraph 5 of HKFRS 8, ‘Operating
segments’ (that is, before the aggregation of segments with

similar economic characteristics).

HKFRS 2 (amendment), ‘Group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions’, effective from 1st January 2010. In
addition to incorporating HK(IFRIC) 8, ‘Scope of HKFRS 2, and
HK(FRIC) 11, 'HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions,
the amendments expand on the guidance in HK(IFRIC) 11 to
address the classification of group arrangements that were not
covered by that interpretation.

HKFRS 5 (amendment), ‘Non-current assets held for sale

and discontinued operations’. The amendment clarifies that
HKFRS 5 specifies the disclosures required in respect of non-
current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale
or discontinued operations. It also clarifies that the general
requirement of HKAS 1 still apply, in particular paragraph 15
(to achieve a fair presentation) and paragraph 125 (sources of
estimation uncertainty) of HKAS 1.
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(b) New and amended standards, and interpretations are mandatory for
the first time for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010 and do not
have material financial impact on the Group's consolidated financial

information: (Continued)

HKAS 32 (amendment), ‘Classification of rights issues’, issued

in October 2009. The amendment applies to annual periods
beginning on or after 1st February 2010. Earlier application

is permitted. The amendment addresses the accounting for
rights issues that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the issuer. Provided certain conditions are
met, such rights issues are now classified as equity regardless

of the currency in which the exercise price is denominated.
Previously, these issues had to be accounted for as derivative
liabilities. The amendment applies retrospectively in accordance
with HKAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting

estimates and errors’.

HK Interpretation 5 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause’ issued in November 2010. The
Interpretation requires that the amounts repayable under a loan
agreement which includes a clause that gives the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time shall be classified
by the borrower as current in its balance sheet, as the borrower
under such an agreement does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Similarly, in the contractual maturity
analysis disclosed by the borrower in accordance with HKFRS 7,
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, amounts repayable under
such loan agreement shall be classified in the earliest time

bracket.

(b)
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New standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010 and

have not been early adopted:

The Group's assessment of the impact of these new standards and

interpretations is set out below.

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, issued in November 2009.

This standard is the first step in the process to replace HKAS 39,
‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement'. HKFRS

9 introduces new requirements for classifying and measuring
financial assets and is likely to affect the Group’s accounting

for its financial assets. The standard is not applicable until 1st
January 2013 but is available for early adoption. The Group is yet
to assess HKFRS 9's full impact.

HKAS 24 (revised), ‘Related party disclosures’, issued in
November 2009. It supersedes HKAS 24, ‘Related party
disclosures’, issued in 2003. HKAS 24 (revised) is mandatory
for periods beginning on or after 1st January 2011. Earlier

application, in whole or in part, is permitted.

The revised standard clarifies and simplifies the definition of a
related party and removes the requirement for government-
related entities to disclose details of all transactions with the
government and other government-related entities. The Group
will apply the revised standard from 1st January 2011. When
the revised standard is applied, the Group and the parent will
need to disclose any transactions between its subsidiaries and
its associates. The Group is currently putting systems in place to
capture the necessary information. It is, therefore, not possible at
this stage to disclose the impact, if any, of the revised standard

on the related party disclosures.

(c)
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(c) New standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010 and

have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 19, ‘Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments’, effective 1st July 2010. The interpretation clarifies
the accounting by an entity when the terms of a financial
liability are renegotiated and result in the entity issuing equity
instruments to a creditor of the entity to extinguish all or part

of the financial liability (debt for equity swap). It requires a gain
or loss to be recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments should be measured to reflect
the fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The Group
will apply the interpretation from 1st January 2011. It is not
expected to have any impact on the Group or the parent entity’s

financial statements.

‘Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement’
(amendments to HK (IFRIC) — Int 14). The amendments correct
an unintended consequence of HK (IFRIC) — Int 14, 'HKAS

19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction’. Without the amendments,
entities are not permitted to recognise as an asset some
voluntary prepayments for minimum funding contributions.
This was not intended when HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 was issued, and
the amendments correct this. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning 1st January 2011. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied retrospectively
to the earliest comparative period presented. The Group will
apply these amendments for the financial reporting period
commencing on 1st January 2011. It is not expected to have any

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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(d) Amendment early adopted by the Group (d AEEREERZEET

The Group early adopted the amendments to HKAS 12, ‘Deferred Tax:
Recovery of Underlying Assets’ (‘the Amendment”) in the current
period. As a result of the Amendment, HK(SIC) — 21 ‘Income taxes —
recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets’ would no longer apply
to investment properties carried at fair value. The amendments

also incorporate into HKAS 12 the remaining guidance previously
contained in HK(SIC) - 21, which is accordingly withdrawn. The
Amendment provides an exception to this measurement principle in
respect of investment property measured using the fair value model
in accordance with HKAS 40, ‘Investment Property’. The purpose

of the exception is to reflect the entity’s expectation of recovery of
the investment property in a practical manner that involves little
subjectivity. In particular, there is a rebuttable presumption that
investment property measured at fair value is recovered entirely by

sale, and therefore, no deferred taxation needed to be recognised from

RAHRASERFHRAEES AR
F125% (RIEFT) DEER: HEEER
Yl (TMEET)) - BT EE (Bi5RE
ZE)REBEEANR SR KOLE
HMLERNIENERE | THERNARAR
BEARNKEYE - ZEFT IF R LA
HRERE (FHREZER)REF21%R
(ERE) ZEMtE 5| HAFTE G ER
F125 - ZIEFTE ARIBEE B ETHERE
4057 [REME | B AR BEFEZKRE
MR ERAREGISMER - ZHIIMER
MWE AR ERBERIREREYE
B EMEBRERZ - LER RAAE
Bt ENRENFEBHEEEHKD
EEHARERZHEE - MR EBNER

revaluation of the investment properties in Hong Kong. BY X EFHERETERELERIE

The effect of the adoption of the Amendment is as follows: e —THIERI 2 BT

() Effect on consolidated balance sheet at 31st December 0 HR-F-ZFFI—H=1—H
2010 ZHRERERBXRZTE
31st December 31st December
2010 2010
(Under previous (Under revised
accounting policy) Effect of HKAS 12 accounting policy)
—E-EF Amendment —E-2F
+ZA=+-H BRETED +ZA=+-H
(RE£R ENHRZEE (REBEBTZ
EHER) (#53]) B HE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
Decrease in deferred ERRMEHAERD

income tax liabilities 18,953 957 17,996
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(d) Amendment early adopted by the Group (Continued)
(i) Effect on consolidated balance sheet at 31st March 2010

Decrease in deferred EEREHAERD

income tax liabilities

(iii) ~ Effect on the Group’s equity at 31st March 2010

Increase in retained earnings REBBFIE

(iv)  Effect on the Group’s earnings per share at 31st March 2010

ARRBAFH AR
BRELEEB 2 ER
EAREFIE

Increase in basic earnings per share
from continuing operations
attributable to equity holders of
the Company

Increase in diluted earnings per
share from continuing operations
attributable to equity holders of
the Company

RRBRBAFH ARG L
BEREREEBZER
HSg R
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(d) XTEBERFEMZET (8

(ii)

31st March

2010

(Under previous
accounting policy)
—ER-2F
=ZA=+-A
(REBEAZ

B EE)
HK$'000

TET

11,056

(iif)

Previously stated
REZ5!
HK$'000
FEr

196,603

(iv)

For the

twelve months
ended 31st March
2010

BHE
—E-2F
=B=+-AH
E+=@A
Previously stated
REZ5]

HK cents

B4l

14.04

14.01

YR - FE—FF=[F=+—HZ
HEEEREXRZFE

31st March

2010

(Under revised

Effect of HKAS 12 accounting policy)
Amendment —E2-%F%
EHEGHER =ZA=+-8H
F1H2E (REZEBTZ
(#&3T) EHER)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR

592 10,464

HR—E—FF=—H=+F—HZ
AEE R TE

Adjustments Restated
AR EL]]
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT TR
592 197,195

HRAEFR - FE—FF=H

St+-HZEREFZHE
For the
twelve months
ended 31st March
2010
Bz
—g-%F
=A=+-H
tE+=M@A
Adjustments Restated
RE B35
HK cents HK cents
=2 1] AL
0.20 14.24
0.20 14.21
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(d) Amendment early adopted by the Group (Continued)

This change in accounting policy had been applied retrospectively and
the comparative financial information had been restated accordingly.
Since the Group does not have any investment properties as at 1st
April 2009, the adoption of this Amendment does not have any impact

on the opening balance sheet of the earliest comparative period.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have

been consistently applied to the current period and the prior year presented,

unless otherwise stated.

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries) made up to 31st December for the current period and

31st March for prior years.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account

for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred; the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On

an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-

controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the

statement of comprehensive income (note 3(h)).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries

have been changed where necessary in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.
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(b)
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Interests in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group's interests in associates include
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment

loss.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its share

of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount

of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associated companies have been changed where necessary

to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic

decisions.
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(d) Foreign currency translation

()

(ii)

(iif)

(d)
Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the

Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the entity operates (the

“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements

are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s

functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period/year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other income’. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income

statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

i

) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance

sheet;

e
0

(ii)

(iii)
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(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of

the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings, are taken to other comprehensive income. When
a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the gain or loss on

sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign

entity and translated at the closing rate.
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(e) Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land and buildings are stated at fair value. Property, plant
and equipment, other than leasehold land and buildings, are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet at their
revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation

less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair values at the balance

sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and buildings is
credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously recognised as an
expense, in which case the increase is credited to the consolidated
income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged.

A decrease in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset

is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that

asset.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost or revalued

amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as

follows:

Leasehold land and Over the remaining term of the
buildings lease or 50 years, whichever

is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 10% — 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Data centre equipment 10%

Computer and office 20% — 33'/3%
equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f)
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(e)
An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When revalued assets are sold,
the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to retained

earnings.

Investment properties (f)
Property that is held for long-term rental yields and not occupied by
the Group, is classified as an investment property. Investment property

is measured initially at cost, including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair

values are recorded in the consolidated income statement.
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(f) Investment properties (Continued) (f)
If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

(g) Intangible assets (9)
(i) Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets includes patents and licences. On initial
recognition, intangible assets acquired separately are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and non-financial

assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement when the

asset is derecognised.
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(g) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products, commencing in
the year when the products are put into commercial production.
Development expenditure capitalised is carried at cost less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment loss.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can
be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same

basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Outsourcing contract costs

Costs on outsourcing contracts are generally expensed as
incurred. Certain incremental external costs or specific internal
costs that are directly related to contract acquisition or transition
activities which were incurred upon initiation of an outsourcing
contract are capitalised as intangible assets and amortised over
the life of the contract. These costs include the cost of due
diligence activities after competitive selection, costs associated

with installation of systems and processes.
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(9)

(h)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(iv)  Club memberships
Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are stated at
cost less any identified impairment loss and are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any

indication that they may be impaired.

Other than club memberships, the above intangible assets have
finite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
following periods:

Deferred development costs 3 years
Outsourcing contract costs Over the contract life
Patents and licences 2 years

All of the Group’s patents and licences were acquired from third

parties.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.
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(h) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

)

associates and non-financial assets (Continued)
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or associates

is required upon receiving dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries
or associates in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidation financial statements of the

investee's net assets including goodwill.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-

current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade

nou "ou

receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”, “amounts due from

"o "o

customers for contract work”, “finance lease receivable”, “restricted
bank deposits” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the consolidated

balance sheet.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks

and rewards of ownership.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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(j) Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably

estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective

evidence of an impairment loss include:

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest

or principal payments;

The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a

concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation;

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment

exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the amount of the loss is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods pending
customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”)
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months

or less, and bank overdrafts.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business

if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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(p) Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate

and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on

either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an

intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for

future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to

passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for goods sold and service in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns,

rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the

type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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(r) Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to buyers (generally
on delivery, satisfactory installation and customer acceptance) and the
amount of revenue and the costs incurred for the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, other than maintenance services,
is recognised as revenue by reference to the stage of completion,
provided that the revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs
to completion can be measured reliably, unless such services are
incidental to the sale of a product, in which case they are recognised
upon satisfactory installation and customer acceptance. Stage of
completion is established by reference to the costs incurred to date
as compared to the total costs to be incurred under the transaction.
Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated

by the management.

Where recognised profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers for
contract work. Amounts received before the related work is performed
are included in the consolidated balance sheet, as a liability, as receipt

in advance. The balances will be recognised as revenue when earned.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the term of the maintenance service contract.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from computer
equipment let under operating leases, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the terms

of the relevant leases.

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as interest
income over the period of the lease so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of return of the outstanding net investment in

the leases for each accounting period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised using

the original effective interest rate.
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Retirement benefit costs (s)
Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF

Scheme”) and other defined contribution retirement benefit plans

are charged as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits

is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains
and losses which exceed 10 per cent of the greater of the present value
of the Group's retirement benefit obligations and the fair value of plan
assets are amortised over the expected average remaining working

lives of the participating employees.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-

line basis over the average period until the benefits vest.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains/losses and
unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of
plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to
unrecognised actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the

plan.

Share-based payment (t)
Share options granted to directors of the Company and

employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the

fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed

on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an

expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest

immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options

reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in the consolidated income statement, with a

corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount previously recognised in

share options reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.
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(u) Leasing
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

() The Group as lessee
The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net
of finance charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and
equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over
the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

(i) The Group as lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is
included in the consolidated balance sheet based on the nature
of the asset.

Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease on a

straight-line basis.

When assets are leased out under finance lease, the risk and
rewards of ownership transfer to customers. When assets are
leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the lease
payments is recognised as a receivable. The difference between
the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is
recognised as unearned finance income.

(v) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group'’s and Company’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

(@) Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables
The provisioning policy for trade and other receivables of the Group is
based on the evaluation of the collectability of those receivables and
on management’s judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer and the realisation of any repayment pattern
promised. If the financial conditions of these customers were to

deteriorate, additional provision may be required.

(b) Valuation of investment properties, leasehold land
and buildings
The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
values estimated. In making its estimates, the Group considers the
information from the valuations of investment properties, leasehold
land and buildings performed by external professional valuers by
using the open market value approach. Had the Group used different
valuation techniques, the fair value of the investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings would be different and thus may have an

impact to the consolidated income statement.
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(c) Revenue recognition
According to the accounting policy as stated in Note 3(r), the Group
uses the percentage of completion (the “POC") method to determine
the appropriate revenues to be recognised from rendering of services
(other than maintenance services). The stage of completion is
measured by reference to the actual costs incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated costs of completion.
When the outcome of a POC contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that

it is probable to be recoverable.

(d) Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in

the period in which such determination is made.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained

earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically. As
part of this review, the directors of the Company prepare the annual budget
taking into account of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed
annual budget, the directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations

of the management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if

necessary.
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As of 31st December 2010, the Group did not have any external debts (31st
March 2010: same).

There are no changes on the Group's approach to capital risk management

during the period.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk

(including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, and liquidity

risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Group's financial performance.

(@) Marketrisk

()

(i1)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars. Foreign exchange exposure of the
Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
to peg the Hong Kong dollars to the US dollars remains in effect.
There was no material exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates, and no hedging activities were engaged by the Group
during the nine months ended 31st December 2010 (twelve

months ended 31st March 2010: same).

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to variable interest rate risk in respect

of the bank balances and deposits of the Group. The Group
currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy.

The Group's interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Dollars variable interest rate on bank

deposits and balances.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
including bank balances, at the balance sheet date and the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial
period/year and held constant throughout the reporting period
in the case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rate.
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(a) Market risk (Continued)
(ii)  Interest rate risk (Continued))

Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)
If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the
nine months ended 31st December 2010 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$820,000 (twelve months
ended 31st March 2010: increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,548,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank deposits and

balances.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk was managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and
committed transactions. The Group only places deposits in reputable
banks and financial institutions and manages its credit risk associated
with trade receivables through the application of credit approvals,

credit rating and monitoring procedures.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue trade receivables. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the

Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation to
trade receivables, bank balances and deposits, with exposure spread

over a number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk for bank balances and deposits is considered minimal
as the counterparties are banks with a minimal credit-ratings of A3

assigned by international credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (Note 22) in the balance sheet after

deducting any impairment provision.
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Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board of Directors, which has built a liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and financial liabilities. The Group relies on operating cash flow as a

significant source of liquidity.

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as

the impact of discounting is not significant.

31st December 2010 - Group “E-Z5+ZH
=t—-H-%%8

Trade payables e B 5 50E

Other payables H {1 AR IR

31st March 2010 - Group —T-TF=f
=t+—B-FK%E

Trade payables BB SHIE

Other payables H At e {51 AR I8
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On demand or

within 1 year
ARER Over 1 year Total
HTR—-FR HB-F #gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FH FH
193,000 - 193,000
7,800 - 7,800
200,800 - 200,800

On demand or

within 1 year
AREX Over 1 year Total
HR—FA HBil—F st
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL TET THET
189,850 = 189,850
14,422 = 14,422
204,272 = 204,272
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(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The Group relies its surplus cash as a significant source of liquidity. As at
31st December 2010, the Group maintains cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$195,552,000 (31st March 2010: HK$279,988,000),

which are readily available to meet the cash requirements of the

Group.

31st December 2010 - Company —E-Z25+ZA
=+—HB-%&2F

Other payables H At {1 AR IR

Amount due to a subsidiary R B A B K

Amount due to associates REsE R B FIA

31st March 2010 - Company —T-TF=R
=t+—H-&2RA"

Other payables H fth fE A BRTE

Amount due to a subsidiary R B A B3R

Amount due to associates REE A RIRIE

(d) Fair value estimation
The carrying value less impairment of trade receivables, finance lease
and other receivables and deposits, amounts due from customers for
contracts work, restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
amounts due from/(to) related companies, trade payables, other
payables, approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.
The fair value of non current portion of trade receivables and finance

lease receivables are disclosed in Notes 26 and 27 respectively.

()

mBERRE ()
AEBKBERSBBRARDES Z
BERR- R ZTF+=_A=+—
H A&SE2HeRREEEBEVOA
1955520008 (ZE—FF=H=+—
H : 279,988,000/ 7T ) * s% E AR AR FE
MR ENK-

On demand or

within 1 year
BRER Over 1 year Total
ZR—-FR BB Foy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FTET FTERT
227 - 227
468 - 468
2 - 2
697 - 697

On demand or

within 1 year
AIREXK Over 1 year Total
HR—FR BB —F #Et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT
43805 = 4805
341 = 341
5,146 - 5,146

(d)

AREEME

HRBEHEE  REKRESZE mE
AEREMERERZS AN
WEFHRE  BRHRITFER R KB
SEEY B () BIEARIFE - &
B 5 FRIE A R H A B FRIE 2 BREE
5@5WTEE5TE£EEAEETE$HE0%4&%’3%
FEARBEZIETRB MDD IR =
26 5 M 5E 278 B8 ©
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Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold
by the Group to outside customers, less returns and allowances, and revenue

from service contracts, and is analysed as follows:

Sales of goods HE &M
Revenue from service contracts RERBE D WA

KEFEZLEET WA

Revenue from continuing operations

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the Board of
Directors (the “Board"). The Board reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess the performance and allocate resources. The Board has

determined the operating segments based on the Group's internal reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (twelve months ended 31st March
2010: three) operating divisions — Information Technology Products (“IT
Products”) and Information Technology Services (“IT Services”). The Group
disposed of the Global Managed Services (“GMS”) business in August 2009.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information to the chief operating decision maker. The business nature of

each segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products
Being the business of information technology in supplying of information
technology and associated products save for the business under GMS

segment.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems
integration, software and consulting services, engineering support for
products and solutions, managed services save for the business under GMS

segment.

WATEAREBRINAZF T EEm (I
RERFM) RRERBEHRA 2B B FE
Y2 588 EaAran D

For the For the

nine months ended twelve months ended

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z—ZF HE_Z—ZF
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—8H
Fh@EA LE+=f@A
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

573,910 814,011
420,599 515,971

994,509 1,329,982

EXCCHRRARIERERRE EF2F
BIARSEE H A RRE AR XA R D BRE
R-EBZERBAEEZ AFERBECLLED

B

AEEHME(RE—T-—TF=HA=1+—~H
8 A : =) L& rRPIAK — B RHRE
m ([BEfBHRER]) REMB RS (TE
MER®E]) - ARER_FTZNFNALER
BREEIRT ([RIREERTS ) 2 %75 - Lt af
PIRAKEZ2HETESHERTIELER
REZEE - ZED M2 EBEERBENT -

EARRER
BN BB E R RIBWER 2 BB E
B CRREBRRHH BZEBBRI) -

B B B R A

BB RRRES RERBMRE EQRR
RARZ TIRXIE ERRH 2 ANMREY
(RREBRB D B2 EBHHRI) -
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GMS

Being the business undertaken by the Group in the provision of global
management services (which includes information technology infrastructure
administrative services function, facilities management, network operation
maintenance and on-site support, hardware maintenance and desktop
computing services) to clients in Asia including Hong Kong, Thailand and
Taiwan. The Group disposed of the GMS business in August 2009 and the

results of the GMS are presented as discontinued operations (note 45).

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

Nine months ended 31st December 2010

RIRE R IR
BIAEEMRENZESBERS TEKE
EREZIRIREERE (REEARRERTT
ERTS  Rie B M B ER B IR
B R R B MRS ) 2 55 - AEER =
TENFN\AHERREEREER - LIRIK
TR EBE 2N RERILLEES (M
#E45) °

ZERB D BEMZIAT :

BE-_ZE-ZE+-_A=+—HItN{EA

Discontinued

Operations
Continuing Operations 2#&1E
Total
Continuing Total
Operations Group
IT Products IT Services @t GMS @t
EARHER EANBRE SESEXE RREERY N
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET TR
Revenue from external customers REMDEP 2 WA 573,910 420,599 994,509 - 994,509
Intersegment revenue AEERA 8,788 11,892 20,680 - 20,680
Segment revenue AEHA 582,698 432,491 1,015,189 - 1,015,189
Reportable segment profit AHEHBRA 37,683 41,156 78,839 - 78,839
Reportable segment assets AREHBEE 271,328 172,807 444,135 - 444,135
Reportable segment liabilities ARESBEE 192,663 96,812 289,475 - 289,475
Segment depreciation AEIE 1,099 4,871 5,970 - 5,970
Additions to property, RENE BEREE

plantand equipment 882 5434 6,316 - 6,316
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Twelve months ended 31st March 2010 BE_T—ZTF=A=+—HI+=EA

Discontinued

Operations

Continuing Operations B&IE

Total
Continuing Total
Operations Group
IT Products IT Services et GMS et
BabER EABERRE SELEEE RERERRB rEE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEx THET T THET
Revenue from external customers REMNBEE ZWA 814,011 515971 1329982 30,070 1360,052
Intersegment revenue AEEARA 10,237 29798 40,035 - 40,035
Segment revenue SEHA 824,248 545,769 1370017 30,070 1,400,087
Reportable segment profit ARG BRA 33,264 59,120 92,384 4170 96,554
Reportable segment assets RGN HBEE 230,641 141,387 372,028 - 372,028
Reportable segment liabilities ARESHBEE 253,021 117879 370,900 = 370,900
Segment depreciation and amortisation 23547 & K # &5 1170 7735 8,905 10573 19478
Additions to property, RENE BERE

plant and equipment 1,444 7153 8597 3,268 11,865
(@) The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as (@) FIRE D AL ST BUR Jh B 553

the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Performance is
measured based on segment profit that is used by the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance. Income tax expense is not allocated to
reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group are
allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segment profit is profit before income tax, excluding
unallocated share-based payment expense, share of results of
associates, unallocated other income, gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, unallocated depreciation and amortisation for
property, plant and equipment that are used for all segments, fair value
gain on revaluation of investment properties and other corporate
expenses (mainly include staff costs and other general administrative
expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates, restricted
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and unallocated corporate
assets (mainly include property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and intangible assets that are used by all segments,

prepayments and deposits).

Pt A S & st BRERAER - RI[IIRE
TRRERRERARDEER M ED
MERANDEOENE - IEHAX TS

DEERHREDE

AEBENWA RMHER BENRAE
kR 7@an-1:0E SR = R T

A 3RS D BPEE A SR TS B AR A - A
BREADEARND SERIN 2R &
BB ERRES RADBEEMKA HE
ME BB k& RATA D ke
Rz BER&EZRDEITE R
- BEREMRZ ASBEE KA
ERZHEMARRAX (E2BEETAAN
R ELA—RRITIRAKAS)

AHRED BN EEN B L AR

ZRFIBITER RERBLEEMAR
AOBERAREE (EZBEME D EER
ZWE BB REE REMEARETY
BE BNRBEREZES) -
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(@) (Continued)
Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax liabilities,
deferred income tax liabilities and unallocated corporate liabilities
(mainly include accrued charges of the head office).

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,

profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities are
reconciled to results and total assets and total liabilities of the Group as

follows:

Revenue

Reportable segment revenue from
continuing operations

Elimination of intersegment revenue

Revenue from continuing operations per

consolidated income statement

WA

KEFERLEXBZARE

2 EBMA

8K 2 #B R A

RiR A B RYIRA
REFEEEEBZBA

Inter-segment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage profit

mark-up.

Profit or loss

Reportable segment profit from
continuing operations
Unallocated amounts:
Unallocated other income
Fair value gain on revaluation of
investment properties
Unallocated gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Unallocated depreciation
Unallocated amortisation
Share-based payment expense
Share of results of associates
Unallocated corporate expenses

Profit before income tax from
continuing operations per
consolidated income statement

A REE

5}5

BREQEEBARE

AR

FARE A A

ERREME 2 AREEEN

AoEHEWE
Yoz
AOBCHE

Koy B 5
VARR 9 AR 2 Sz 2 B 2

%E%EQT%%

AR R

B =

Rr A BRI R B8
IRE R 2 BT S TR & A

&L

(a)

(b)

(&)
AREDMNAEBED &%%@% SHE
B BEMEHRAERASEARIAE

(I%ﬁ@%ﬁ@?ﬁ%ﬁZﬁEﬁ%ﬁﬁ) g

AR E Z 2 BB A - o2 F SR &S
B EERAEENHER
ARG 2 A EBA R FHEE  BE R
BEEAEREERBEERBEE
HERINT
For the For the
nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-ZF HE—_T—TF
+=A=+—-H =A=+—H~
IEHEAR E+=1@A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
1,015,189 1,370,017
(20,680) (40,035)
994,509 1,329,982

0 7B [ WA F2 B AN MBS AR Mk R

For the For the
nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-ZF HE_T—ZTF
+=-B=+—H =H= + E
IEAEAR 1E+=1&
HK$’000 HKS 'OOO
FHERT FHET
78,839 92,384
2,906 6,646
5,800 3,590
68 -
(5,232) (8,132)
- (43)
- (361)
224 1,714
(38,424) (42,181)
44,181 53,617
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(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue, (b) ARE 2D EUA - 35 F = &5
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) B EEREBENHER
Assets BE 31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—ZF —ZT-ZF
+=A=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Reportable segment assets A RE D EPEE 444,135 372,028
Unallocated assets: ROBEE :
Interests in associates B & N ) M i 1,865 3,095
Unallocated restricted bank deposits RAEERER S ERITER 1,924 29,538
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents AOBRBEEMNBEEEEY 195,552 279,988
Unallocated corporate assets AOBREELE 177,323 146,212
Total assets per consolidated RirEEEBBERYHRN
balance sheet BERR 820,799 830,861
Liabilities afE 31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—ZF —E—ZF
+=A=+—8H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
(restated)
(271)
Note 2(d)
B EE2(d)
Reportable segment liabilities AIRESHAE 289,475 370,900
Unallocated liabilities: ROBEE
Current income tax liabilities BIEAFRS R B fE 12,320 5316
Deferred income tax liabilities B EE 17,996 10,464
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAOMEEERE 43,767 38,116
Total liabilities per consolidated RirE BERBBERIHN

balance sheet BHsE 363,558 424,796
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(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment revenue,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
The Group's businesses and segment assets are all located in the

respective place of domicile of the relevant Group entities which

include Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Macau, Taiwan and Thailand.

Place of domicile FriEit
Hong Kong &5
Guangzhou BEM
Macau et |
Taiwan =)
Thailand %

Interest on bank deposits

Equipment rental income

Rental income from investment properties
Exchange gain

Others

(b) AHREZD WA - BFIRE
B - EEREENYHER®E)
AEBEBRHHEEDDHLN BB
SEERSOZME EhREEE.

B ORFY B REE -

Revenue from

continuing operations

from external customers

REABELEXR ZHIBEFZBA

For the

nine months
ended

31st December

2010
Bz
—z-%%
+=A=+-8
AR
HK$'000
FE
892,766
20,788
40,846
20,285
19,824
994,509
BITHHRAE
SL TN
RERANEZBLRA
B 34 g 2
At

Non-current assets

FRBEE
For the
twelve months
ended
31st March
2010
BHE 31st December 31st March
—T-ZF 2010 2010
=A=+-—~H —E-ZF —E-TF
Ik+=fA +=RA=+-8H =A=1+—"8
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TERT THT
1,182,242 185,255 147,400
27,550 2,208 1,144
51,846 5,831 4,216
26,135 1,062 484
42,209 1,095 905
1,329,982 195,451 154,149
For the For the
nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-ZF BE-T—TF
+=-B=+—H =A=+—H
EhfEA IE+=1@A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
333 942
1,439 3,454
1,122 932
670 1,361
970 181
4,534 6,870
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Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon initial

recognition of loans and receivables to their fair values (twelve months

ended 31st March 2010: same).

Employee benefit expenses
(excluding directors' remuneration)
Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Directors' remuneration (note 12)
Auditor's remuneration
Current period/year
Under/(over)provision in respect of
prior year
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (note 39(a))
Operating lease rentals in respect of:
Office premises

Computer equipment

(Reversal of )/provision for impairment of

intangible assets (note 20)
Provision for impairment of
trade receivables (note 26)
Reversal of provision for impairment of

trade receivables (note 26)

EEEAMFAL
(TREEEMHE)
e R
M BE KR
mREE
B2 (FEE12)
IZERTEN < -
NEAREFE
BEFERETRE
(HBRERAE)
HEWE - BE k&2 e
(B#E396@))
KEMERS:
NS Y/ S
BISEE
&L ERE (BERE),
45 (FFE20)
FE U B 5 FRIE (B A
(K7E26)
FEWE 5 FIE 2 R E B E R
(H7E26)

REVB|RRME

TEF+-RA=+—HBLENEA

P AIE T E R A B EERE TR R
FIRRERNBREN (BE—T-TF=H

=t—HIE+—@EA:

For the

nine months ended
31st December
2010
BE-Z-2F
+=ZA=+—8
IERfEA
HK$'000

FHER

277,738

11,202

7,914

1,736

32

(227)

5,863
1,281

(200)

863

(1,597)

R

For the

twelve months ended
31st March

2010
HE_Z—ZF
EH=a—FE
ol 5
HK$'000

THET

343,208

16,386

694
13,410

8,224
3,075

200

1,511

(1,930)
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Salaries and other benefits
Performance related incentive bonus

Special bonus

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Share-based payment expense

Total employee benefit expenses

Fees
Other emoluments:

Salaries and other benefits

Performance related incentive bonus

Special bonus

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Share-based payment expense

TEF+-A=+—HBLENEA

e REMmER
RIRE /2 RRENIEAT

1 RITEAL

RRFRAET SR

VAR D R B S A 2 X

EERANFEZ A

we
Hipf < :
Fre M EAMER
=IE B2 RENEAT
B BIFEAT
RORAR AT &R
VAR A0 2 BB S22 il 2

For the

nine months ended
31st December
2010
BE-Z-2F
+=ZA=+—8
IERfEA
HK$'000

FTHER

258,015
13,542

6,181

277,738

For the

nine months ended
31st December
2010
BE-_Z-2F
+=RAR=+—H
LERfEA
HK$’000

FHERT

401

4,626
2,925

(38)

7,914

For the

twelve months ended
31st March

2010
HE_T-TF
EH=E—E
It+=fEA
HK$'000

TET

312,313
22,851
3,500
7,704
340

346,708

For the

twelve months ended
31st March

2010
HE_ZT—TF
EH=EF—E
IE+=@A
HKS'000

THET

932

4,833
2,721
4,500
403
21

13,410



The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (twelve months ended

31st March 2010: nineteen) directors were as follows:

Name of director

LAl'Yam Ting, Ready

LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon (Note a)
LAU Ming Chi, Edward

HU Liankui (Note a)

WANG Weihang (Note a)

CHEN Zhaohui (Note a)

YOUNG Meng Ying (Note a)

LU Jiagi (Note a)

XU Peng (Note a)

EEnA

mEg
& (st
2885
HREE 2 (Ff e
F 4 (Ff
FRFAE (I
gk (M
Bz (fia
R (Mzta)

a)

a)
ita)
ita)
ita)
a)
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Fees
ne
HK$'000
TR

53
38
38
108
85
79

401

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

ARBENHENALZ (BE-T—FF=]
=E+—HETZ@RA:TAL)ESFZME
T

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010

BE-Z2-BF+-A=t-ALNEA

Performance Retirement  Share-based
Salaries related benefit payment
and other incentive scheme expense
benefits payments  contributions MR 5
¥R  REREZ RAER  ERXAz Total
HtbiE R BB B 8 53 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TRT TER TER TR
(Note d)
(M&Ed)
1,890 1,360 (270) - 2,980
1,602 1,070 130 - 2,802
1,134 495 102 - 1,731
- - - - 53
- - - - 38
- - - - 38
- - - - 108
- - - - 85
- - - - 79

4,626 2,925 (38) - 7914
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BENS

Name of director

LAI Yam Ting, Ready RBEE
LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon (Note a) 223 ¥ (Fff3ta)

LAU Ming Chi, Edward 2sxE

HU Liankui (Note a) HREEZE (Ftita)

WANG Weihang (Note a) F A (fitata)

CHEN Zhaohui (Note a) BRHAE (fia)

YOUNG Meng Ying (Note a) mmdt (fisa)

LU Jiagi (Note a) Pz (Misa)

XU Peng (Note a) 3% (fffska)

Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH Allen Joseph PATHMARAJAH
(Note b) (PitzEb)

KUO Chi Yung, Peter (Note b) FHE (Mizb)

MOO Kwee Chong, John (Note b) MOO Kwee Chong, John

(Biztb)

Michael SHOVE (Note b) Michael SHOVE
(MzEb)

Darren John COLLINS (Note b)  Darren John COLLINS
(PizEb)

WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth WANG Yung Chang, Kenneth

(Note b) (FizEb)

Andrew John ANKER (Note b) Andrew John ANKER
(MzEb)

CHEUNG Man, Stephen (Note ¢) 3k X (ff#Ec)

HON Sheung Tin, Peter (Note b) 8243 (Fiztb)

LIKing Hang, Richard (Note b) 2= (FiEb)

Fees
HK$'000
TR

35
25
25
100
67
73

101
65

7
2
29
2
2
46

101
101

932

(a) The directors were appointed on 29th September 2009.

(b) The directors resigned on 20th October 2009.

() The director retired effective from the conclusion of the annual general meeting

of the Company on 26th August 2009.

(d)  The performance related incentive payments are determined as a percentage of

profit for the period/year of the Group.

Annual Report 2010 £

Salaries
and other
benefits
HeRk
Hi A
HK$'000
THT

2488

4833

(e) The special bonus is made in relation to the completion of the disposal of the

GMS business.

For the twelve months ended 31st March 2010

HE—_Z-ZH-A=+—HIT+=AA

Performance Retirement  Share-based
related Special benefit payment
incentive Bonus scheme expense
payments (Notee) contributions LARR D
REARBZ BRITEAL  RINER BRI Total
RENEA (Mizke)  sHEIER Hx Fk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET T TH THET
(Note d)
(FizEd)
1,804 2,500 273 12 7077
300 500 68 = 1,708
617 1,500 56 9 3,507
- = = = 35
= = = = 25
- - - - 25
- - - - 100
- - - - 67
= = = = 73
- - - - 101
- - 6 - 251
- - - - 77
- - - - 29
- - - - 29
- - - - 29
- - - - 29
= = = = 46
- - - - 101
- - - - 101
2,721 4500 403 21 13410
@ BEEFR-ZETAFAA-THLBAEERE-
b)) BEBFER-_TTNAF+TA-THEE-
© EFE-TENFNAZTABRITZARAT
RERBEFEANGERIZIRE-
o REEMZEREALRASEESE 55

M2 BEDLERE

FRIFEALTI BT th S IR E R R X B M1
$o
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During the nine months ended 31st December 2010, no remuneration has
been paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group and no directors have waived any remuneration (twelve
months ended 31st March 2010: same).

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the period/year included
three (twelve months ended 31st March 2010: two) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 12 above. The remuneration of the
remaining two (twelve months ended 31st March 2010: three) highest paid
individuals for the period/year are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e REMBEA
Performance related incentive bonus RRBWZ REEA
Special bonus FERITEAT

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRE A ET SR
Share-based payment expense AR RER N 2R

Their remunerations were within the following bands:

HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ JT 22,000,000 7T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000 7T
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T 224,000,000 7T
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T 25,500,000 7T

HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7T 26,500,000 7T

@

R —TFE+_A=+—HIEAEA"
RE I?ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂﬂ)\$¢@ﬁﬁ§iﬁ2%
T WRAEEMRELAME (BE-_T—F
F=RA=+—HILE+=ER: ﬂi)

]

B/ fARER=H2EERE=4A (HE—
—EE=A=+—HLEt-@AA:mR)E
o REZHSFHBEN LR85 8,7
FRESME (BRE-_T— iizﬂ:-@-—ﬁ

IE+ZEA  =8) z&&FHES 2 e 15l
T
For the For the
nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-F-FF  HE-T-TF
+=RA=+—H :ﬂ:‘f’*a
IEAEA IE+=EA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
3,273 5,507
3,860 5170
- 1,500
111 291
- 22
7,244 12,490
BEZMENF 58 E
Number of individuals
BRAB
For the For the
nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-ZF HE_Z-ZF
+=-BR=+—H :)E]:ﬂL*E
LA A I+ =18 A
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

For the

nine months ended

For the

twelve months ended

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z—-ZF HE-T—ZTF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
IFh@EA IE+—f@A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(restated)
(&751)
Note 2(d)
B EE2(d)
Current taxation: BVERAFRIA
Hong Kong profits tax BEBFEH 7,600 10,092
Overseas taxation BHNEETE 191 464
(Over)/under provision in prior year BAEE (BERE) BETR
Hong Kong profits tax BEBEFEH (276) 212
Overseas taxation TEHNRIE (87) -
7,428 10,768
Deferred taxation (Note 36): IRIERIE (P 5E 36) -
Current period/year NEARE S EE 2,220 ©11)
Income tax expense FriSFiAx 9,648 9,857

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (twelve

months ended 31st March 2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit

for the period/year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on

the estimated assessable profit for the period/year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

EEFEH IR AN AR/ FE BT R =
AT R165% (HE-_E—ZFEF=HA=+—H
LE+ =& A - 16.5% ) 1 H B 4 - 8 5NE F 2 B
TRRR R AR, F 2 5t R TUR AR AR &
BEEEBMERR BT ETE -



The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

Profit before income tax

Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of
16.5% (31st March 2010: 16.5%)
Tax effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose
Income not taxable for tax purpose
(Over)/underprovision in prior years
Effect of different tax rates of
overseas operations
Tax losses not recognised
Others

Income tax expense

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 21.8% (twelve months ended

31st March 2010 (restated): 18.4%).
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 & & = Z —

ZERNT:

B P15 35 A4 )

BEBFEH B E165%T B 2 FE
(Z2—ZF=A=+—H:165%)

TR 2

TERi 570 B Al HRL 2 2

RIS E SR 2 A

BAFE (BERE) BETTE

RBINEBTERZ TR R
2

KRIERZ BIEEE

Hth

FR1S B R X

For the

nine months ended

31st December

HK$'000
TER

44,181

7,290

883
(1,313)
(363)

(94)

102
3,143

9,648

REVB|RRME

TEF+-RA=+—HBLENEA

REERAEHRANEN 2 HIRERABERARG
HEREN ZMEFOREGHZEREEL

For the

twelve months ended
31st March

2010
HE-_Z—ZF
EH=EF—F
IE+=@A
HKS'000

TR
(restated)

(&%)

Note 2(d)

B EE2(d)

53617

8,847
198

(101)
212

9,857

MEFEERARER218% (BHE_T—TF=

A=+—H1t+=M@A (F7) : 184%) °
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

RE/ FRBR /DK ZIRE

Dividends recognised as distribution

during the period/year:
Interim dividend in respect of HE-T—ZTF
the nine months ended +=A=+—A”
31st December 2010 of IENE A Z R HRR S

4.0 HK cents per share %4078
BE_TTNAF=A=1—H
IE+={E A 2RI E

Special dividend in respect of

the twelve months ended

31st March 2009 of B R92.07 1L
92.0 HK cents per share
Dividends proposed: BIRR S
Final dividend in respect of HE-T—ZTF
the nine months ended +=A=+—A”
31st December 2010 of LIENE A Z REARR &
4.0 HK cents per share %4078

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company which has been

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of

HK$12,548,000 (31st March 2010: HK$282,452,000).

For the

nine months ended
31st December
2010
BE-E-2F
+=-BA=+—H
Eh{E A
HK$'000

FTHERT

12,456

12,456

12,456

12,456

ERARRIHBHRKRERE 2 A

For the

twelve months ended

31st March
2010

HE-_ZT—TF

=A=+—H

/D\

E+=1@A
HK$'000
FHBT

286,491

286,491

ARAFE

AFEAG % A 5125480008 T (—E—ZTF =4

=-+—H :282452,000/7T) °
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REVB|RRME

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to

equity holders of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
per share and diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic earnings
per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
— Share options (note a)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share

RAGTEFRER K
BSEREN 2B

RUAGESRELRRNZ
BB R T 8

TRREEEETE
— FERRHE (Mi5ta)

RRABIRARE ARG SRERREERHN T
BT BIRET &

For the For the

nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-2F HZE —ZF
+=A=+—H :ﬂ:‘f‘fﬁ
IFh@EA IE+=fEA
HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET
(restated)

(&51)

Note 2(d)

Bt EE2(d)

34,533 116,358

Number of shares

RUAGHESREERANZ

ERINE T

Note a:  There was no dilutive instrument for the nine months ended 31st December

2010.

R&OHAE
For the For the
nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-T-TF  HE-T-TF
+=A=+-8 =A=+—H§
WFHfEA IE+=1EA
‘000 ‘000
TR Fi
311,403 307,476
- 553
311,403 308,029

fidta: BE-_T-—ZF+_A=t—HIIEA
HR jtﬁ,ﬁﬁéﬁ/ﬁlﬁ"
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Earnings per share from continuing operations AEATRRAFEAREREFELE
attributable to equity holders of the Company EBzBREF
For the For the

nine months ended

twelve months ended

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-ZF HE-_T—TF
+=ZA=+-—H =EH=—E
IEHEAR IF+=1@A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
(restated)
(271)
Note 2(d)
B EE2(d)
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings FRUGTEREFELEEB 2
per share and diluted earnings per BRERR#FERAT 2 2
share from continuing operations 34,533 43,760
Earnings per share from discontinued operations ARATRAFTEABEREERLER
attributable to equity holders of the Company EXB2BRAEFN
For the For the
nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-ZF HE-_T—TF
+=ZA=+-—H =H=+—8H
IEHfEAR IE+=1@A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings RAUGTERBEERIELEER 2
per share and diluted earnings per ERERNRESERI BT
share from discontinued operations - 72,598
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

(@) Group (@ &K£H
Leasehold Computer
land and Data centre and office
buildings Furniture Motor equipment equipment
#HE  andfixtures vehicles B BERR Total
THREF BRAREE AE ®E  BAERE @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
AT TR THT THT THT THT
Cost or valuation RASfEE
At 1st April 2009 RZZZNFMNA—A 97,300 4409 3825 16022 306,262 467,505
Additions NE - 1,249 - 182 15,235 16,666
Disposals HE - (459) = (259) (5031) (5,749)
Transfer to investment properties BB EIRE Y%

(note 19) (PBzE19) (15478) - - - - (15478)
Exchange realignment B X B R - 98 3 - 628 749
Revaluation adjustment BHAR 17,278 - - - - 17,278
Disposed as part of ERERIEEEERL

the discontinued operations —HHLE

(note 45) (Pt F45) - - - (15,945) (138539) (154484)

At 315t March 2010 RZZ-TF
—A=t+-H 99,100 44,984 3,848 - 178,555 326487
Comprising: RECE
At cost 2% - 44984 3,848 - 178,555 227387
At valuation 4 99,100 - - - - 99,100
99,100 44,984 3,848 - 178,555 326487
At 1st April 2010 RZF—-FFMNA—A 99,100 44,984 3,848 - 178555 326487
Additions WE = 1274 240 = 9,526 11,040
Disposals HE - (25) (316) = (6,016) (6357)
Transfer RS - (4,315) - - 4315 -
Exchange realignment X EHE = 97 20 = 489 606
Revaluation adjustment BHAR 30200 - - - - 30,200
At 31st December 2010 RZE-ZF
+=A=+-H 129,300 42,015 3,792 S 186,869 361,976
Comprising: RECE
At cost 2% - 4015 3792 - 186,869 232676
Atvaluation 4 129,300 - - - - 129,300

129,300 42015 3,792 = 186,869 361,976
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

(@) Group (Continued) (@) &~&%BE (#H)
Leasehold Computer
land and Data centre and office
buildings Furniture Motor equipment equipment
E  andfixtures vehicles L EKR Total
THREF HKRREE AE RE  BOAERB st
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET THET THx TER THET
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1st April 2009 RZETNFNA—H - 39051 2570 6443 244,542 292,606
Charge for the year FRMER 2,308 2112 392 974 21,131 26917
Disposals HE - (445) = (259) (4,864) (5568)
Transfer to investment properties B EIR B %

(note 19) (BzE19) (168) - - - = (168)
Exchange realignment Rk - 85 3 = 463 571
Eliminated on revaluation RE L (2.140) - - - = (2.140)
Disposed as part of ERERIEEEER L

the discontinued operations —HALE

(note 45) (P E45) - - - (7,158) (109,400) (116,558)

At 315t March 2010 and RZZE-FF
1st April 2010 =A=+-8k
“Z-ZFMA—H - 40,803 2985 - 151,872 195,660
Charge for the period BAmE 199% 1321 293 - 7,592 11,202
Disposals k= - (24) (306) - (5,946) (6,276)
Transfer e - (4,887) - = 4,887 -
Exchange realignment EXEAE - 67 19 - 393 479
Eliminated on revaluation INEX Y SEIRE] (1,99) - - - = (1,99)
At 31st December 2010 R-Z-ZF
+=B=t+-H - 37,280 2,991 - 158,798 199,069
Carrying values BREE
At 31st December 2010 R-E-ZF
+=ZA=t+-H 129,300 4,735 801 - 28,071 162,907
At31st March 2010 RZZ-ZF
=A=+—H 99,100 4181 863 - 26,683 130827



(a)
()

(iii)

(iv)

Group (Continued)
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REVB|RRME

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

(@) A£E#)

The leasehold land and buildings were last revalued by DTZ (i)

Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
valuer, at 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010, at market
value basis which is determined by reference to market

evidence of recent transactions for similar properties. The

revaluation gave rise to a revaluation surplus net of applicable
deferred income taxes of HK$26,884,000 (twelve months ended
31st March 2010: HK$16,214,000) which has been credited to

the property revaluation reserve.

If the leasehold land and buildings had not been revalued, (if)
they would have been included in these consolidated financial

statements at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and

amortisation, of approximately HK$54,562,000 (twelve months

ended 31st March 2010: HK$56,111,000).

During the year ended 31st March 2010, land and buildings

(iii)

with a carrying amount of HK$15,310,000 were reclassified from
property, plant and equipment to investment properties as a

result of change in usage.

The Group's interest in leasehold land represents finance lease

(iv)

payments held in Hong Kong between 10 to 50 years.

Depreciation of the Group's property, plant and equipment have (v)
been charged to the consolidated income statement as follows:

HETHREFRE ABBLE
¥ HEMBERTARAANNR-E
—ZETFF+-_A=+—HBER=_F—
TE=A=+—H2ZEmB LA
MYELAR 52 BRE ERE
MERIRSHEEEETER-
BHENRBERBELEMESHREEE
EHA#268840008 T (BHEZT
—RF=fF=+—HIE+=@A:
16,214,0007%8 7T ) * WE T ARMESE
fhiEE

WAE L RIEFRFERH E2
IR S AR NBR 25T E R L
545620008 T (BHEZT—TF =
A=+—81t+=1858 :56111,000
BIL) BRt AR SR A M IEREK -

REE=_ZT—ZTF=A=+—A1t
FE ARFERBRNE  FARE
115,310,000/ 7T 2 T3 RAEF B
¥ BERREETDEAEREY
%o

AEBREELH 2 RAENE
BRANTI0E0F 2 RERER

Eo
oA °

AEBEZME BERRBZFE
BEftRaEaRTHRAT

For the For the

nine months ended twelve months ended

31st December 31st March

2010 2010

BE—Z-ZF HE-_T—ZF

+=B=+—H =A=+—H

IEAEA IE+=@A

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHT

Cost of services rendered M AR TS 2 X AN 5,209 19,929
Selling expenses HEEH 761 1,692
Administrative expenses THER 5,232 5,296
11,202 26917

At 31st December 2010, the Group's leasehold land and

buildings of approximately HK$129,300,000 (31st March 2010:
HKSNil) were pledged to secure the banking facilities of the

Group as mentioned in Note 43.

WM Fsl - R —FF =
A=+—H AEEzHAELTH R
BF 471293000008 7T (ZE—F4F
=RA=+—R :TH ) ERELE
ERITRE 2 HEH -
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

(b) Company

Cost
At 1st April 2009
Additions

At 31st March 2010 and
Tst April 2010

Additions
Disposals

At 31st December 2010

Accumulated depreciation

At 1st April 2009
Charge for the year

At 31st March 2010 and
1st April 2010

Charge for the period
Disposals

At 31st December 2010

Carrying values
At 31st December 2010

At 31st March 2010

Furniture
and fixtures
BRREE
HK$'000
FHT
%N
R-ZEZNFHA—A 1437
NE 23
RZE—FF
ZA=t—-8K
—ZT-ZFMA—H 1460
RNE 522
HE -
R-ZE-—ZF
+=-A=+-H 1,982
Rt E
RZZETNFNA—A 36
FRMER 346
R-T—TF
=A=+—HK
—ZT-ZFWA—H 382
HR IR 264
& -
R-ZE-ZF
+=ZA=+—H 646
REE
R-Z2—ZF
+=A=+—-H 1,336
RZZE—ZF
=A=+—H 1,078

Depreciation expenses of HK$ 1,682,000 (twelve months ended 31st
March 2010: HK$2,163,000) have been charged to “administrative

expenses”.

(b) Z&AF

Computer

and office

Motor equipment
vehicles BERKR
AE POERE
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
1,802 8257

= 365

1,802 8622

= 19
(52) (8617)
1,750 24
640 2,242

360 1,457
1,000 3,699
267 1,151
(42) (4,843)
1,225 7
525 17

802 4923

Total
#ct
HK$'000
THET

11,496
388

11,884
541
(8,669)

3,756

2918
2,163

5,081
1,682
(4,885)

1,878

1,878

6,803

FERS16820008 T (BE_T—TF=A
=+—HIE+=AEA 21630008 7T) ER

[TTECE M ] ek -



At 1st April 2010 and 2009
Transferred from property, plant and equipment

(note 18(a)(iii))

Fair value gain

At 31st December and 31st March 2010

Annual Report 2010 4F 3%

R=ZZT—ZTFR
T NFMA—H

BREAME BEREE
(B EE18G)i) )

A EEBLN

RF—FF+=A=+-
=A

=t—~

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated income

statement:

Rental income (note 8)

Direct operating expense arising from
investment properties that

generate rental income

HE2 WA (FfzEs)

EEESWRAZRENE
EL 2 BERELERX

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) & £t 52 @A R A 7

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 & & =%

31st December
2010
—z-2%
+t=A=+-8
HK$’000

FHExT

18,900

5,800

B X
24,700

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHmRMEE

TEF+-RA=+—HBLENEA

31st March
2010

—E -5
EH=a—FE
HK$'000
THET

15,310
3,590

18,900

AT 2EENERA BERER

For the

nine months ended
31st December
2010
BE-Z-ZF
+=RA=+—H
Eh @A
HK$’000

FER

1,122

207

For the

twelve months ended
31st March

2010
HEZZ—ZTF
=H=+—H
IE+=@A
HK$'000

FHET

932

276



Automated Systems Holdings Limited (5 B R 55 @A R A 7 Annual Report 2010 £

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR HRERMEE

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

(@  Theinvestment properties of the Group were last revalued by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional valuer at
31st December 2010, on the basis of market value (31st March 2010:

same).

(b)  The Group's interests in investment properties are analysed as follows:

In Hong Kong, held on: REBRE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10250F 2 FHE

The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are set out in note 42.

(© At 31st December 2010, the Group's investment properties of
approximately HK$24,700,000 (31st March: HKSNil) were pledged to

secure the banking facilities of the Group as mentioned in Note 43.

AEBZREMERK - RBBIEX
HEMBERTERARNR - —FF
T A=t HERMEEEFETER
(ZE—ZTF=A=+—H:ER) -

REBRNBREMEZ EEDITINT

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-=F —ET-FF
+=ZA=+-—H =EH=—E
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

24,700 18,900

REBET ARG ERNERZ AR KERS L
BRI FE42 ©

(0)

MM F43f T R —TF+ =8
=+—B  REEZIRE W K924,700,000
BL(ZE—ZF=A=1+—H T%nx)
EREASBIRITHE 21K



(a) Group

Cost
At Tst April 2009
Transfer
Disposals/write-off
Exchange realignment
Disposed as part of the discontinued
operations (note 45)

At 31st March 2010 and Tst April 2010

Disposals/write-off
At 31st December 2010

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
At 1st April 2009
Charge for the year
Transfer
Disposals/write-off
Exchange realignment
Impairment (note 10)
Disposed as part of the discontinued
operations (note 45)

At 31st March 2010 and 1st April 2010

Reversal of impairment (note 10)
Disposals/write-off

At 31st December 2010

Carrying values
At 31st December 2010

At 31st March 2010

Annual Report 2010 4F 3%

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 & & = Z —

Deferred
development

costs
EERRRA
HK$'000
TET
ﬁszzt:
RZZETNFNA—H 16415
Lz 83 206
HE /i (223)
EXARE 14
ERERIEREEH 2
AHE (Fizkas) =
R-2-ZHEZF=+-RK
—T-ZFWA—-R 16412
HE /i (16412)
R=Z-Z5+-A=+-H -
R BERAE
RZZTTNFMA—A 15758
FRN%B 694
b 156
HE sk (208)
X EAE 12
WE (F#0) =
ERBREEEEB 2
SHE (Mi5E45) -
R-Z-BF=A=+-AR
“Z-TEMA-A 16412
BERE (Fiz0) =
HE /8 (16412)

R=2-FF+-A=t+-H -

REME
R=2-FF+-A=t-H -

RZE-—F5=f=1+—H =

During the twelve months ended 31st March 2010, amortisation of

HK$694,000 has been charged to “cost of services rendered” in the

consolidated income statement.
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REVB|RRME

FE+-A=+—RLAEA

(@) &&F

Patents

Outsourcing and

contract costs licences

NGRS BFERMR

HK$'000 HKS'000

TET TET

3,640 7,800

(206) -

(12) -

(2,266) -

1,156 7800

(1,156) (7.800)

2,694 7800

41 -

(156) -

(12) =

1 —

(1412) -

1,156 7,800

(1,156) (7,800)
RBE_ZT-—TF=

Club
memberships
=it
HK$'000
THT

900

900

900

200
(200)

900

700

=t+—Hit+=

Total
#gt
HK$'000
TET

28,755

(239)
14

(2,260)

26,268

(25,368)

900

26,252
735

(220)

200

(1412)

25,568

(200)
(25368)

900

700

ﬁ&iﬁ@%oooﬁﬁaﬁé REB=EERY HE Hlﬁ%

Z A R HORR o
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

(b) Company

Cost
At 1st April 2009, 31st March 2010 and
31st December 2010

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
At 1st April 2009

Impairment (note 10)

At 31st March 2010 and 1st April 2010

Reversal of impairment (note 10)

At 31st December 2010

Carrying values
At 31st December 2010

At 31st March 2010

(b) &AF

2%
R-_EZENFNA—HB - —E—ZTF=FA=1+—HK
—T—FTF+-_A=+—H

B RREE
R_ZEZNFWMA—A
B (FizE10)

R-E-FF=A=+-AR-T-FTFMA—A
OB (10

R=-Z2-2F+-A=+—H

BEE
R-®—2F+-A=+—0

W-E-FF=A=+-A

31st December

2010
—EB-=F
+=A=+-—H
HK$’000
FHET
At 1st April 2010 and 2009 RZZE—ZFERZZTTNEF

mA—H 3,095
Share of results of associates Pak (el /NI S 224
Dividends received B Y8 (1,454)

At 31st December and 31st March 2010 RZE—ZTF+_A=+—HK
EF=—E 1,865

Club membership

EREE
HK$'000
THET

500

200

200
(200)

500

300

31st March
2010
—T—F
=A=+—H
HK$'000
FHT

3,095
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Particulars of the Group's unlisted associates at 31st December 2010 and 31st RZZE—ZTFF+_A=F+—HE=ZZT—ZTF=
March 2010 are as follows: A=+—H A&EB I LMEEQRFEN
T
Percentage

Name of associate

BEATEH

IN Systems (Macao) Limited

ASL Automated Services
(Thailand) Limited

The Group's share of results of IN Systems (Macao) Limited, and its assets and

liabilities, are as below:

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Group's share of net assets of the associate

Total revenue

Total profit for the period/year

Group's share of results of the associate for
the period/year

of nominal value
of issued ordinary
share capital

held indirectly

Country/place by the Company
of incorporation EREBESE
R 2 ERTEBRA Principal activities
BxR it 2% EZEBEMOL FTEEK
Macau 33.3% Provision of engineering
P and software services
TR T2 R AR TS
Thailand 49% Provision of engineering
& and software services

LRt Ti2 R IR

REEERBENT:

31st December

2010

—E—ZF

+=A=+—H

HK$'000

FHEx

MEE 7,426

FEN=R (1,956)

FEE 5,470

AEBEELHERTNFEE 1,865

@l s 5,747

H) R 48 5 T 673
RNEBEH FAREWG

/N e 224

R E B FE{HIN Systems (Macao) Limited Z 3 48 A

31st March
2010
—Z-TF
=A=+-8
HK$'000
FHT

10,454
(1,169)

9,285
3,095
12,070
5,142

1,714
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses of ASL
Automated Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of unrecognised share
of results of this associate, extracted from the relevant management account

of the associate, both for the period/year and cumulatively, are as follows:

Unrecognised share of profit of an associate B FRARERENEE AR
for the period/year i A

Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of ZEPRERE(L IS A REE
an associate

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the

line items below:

Group rEE

Loans and receivables B & FE W R TE
Trade receivables FEWE 5 RKIR
Other receivables and deposits E h fE R IR &TE@
Amounts due from customers for BHTIREREP K

contract work

Restricted bank deposits Z PR H ER1TIF K
Finance lease receivables JE W Bt A FRIE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREERBY

N E BB 4% 1E B SR FE {5 ASL Automated Services
(Thailand) Limited /518 « FEfk % B & A @) 2 H3,/
FARRGTZAEREECRE (HEEREHER
AlZEAEERB) AT :

For the For the

nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-ZT-ZF HE_Z—ZF
+=ZA=+—H =A :‘f'_ =
IEAEA IE+=EA
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

22 29

569 591

ERMTAZEABRCERAR TSR

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-FF —T—TF
+=-B=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
165,591 148,551

8,136 9,021

161,659 90,423

1,924 29,538

5,124 -

195,552 279,988

537,986 557,521



Group

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade payables
Other payables

Company

Loans and receivables
Other receivables and deposits
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Company

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other payables
Amount due to associates

Amount due to a subsidiary

Unlisted shares, at cost
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—ZF —E—TF
+=BA=+—H =HA=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
REE
REHEKAT R SREE
BB 53R 193,000 189,850
H i fE < 5RIE 7,800 14,422
200,800 204,272
KAF
B & e WA
Hib R FIERIZS 2 50
URIEENGIRSE 88,228 82,887
ReERRESEEY 8,240 5,793
96,470 88,730
AAT
REHKAS R EBAE
o AN 227 4,805
K%%“ GIECE 2 =
NG R 468 341
697 5,146
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—=F —ZT-ZF
+=B=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
IE TR - R AR 134,623 134,623
FEMBE R AFIBEN RS IS HRERM 5E49 ©

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

RIEEEZEY
BREFPEMZEY

Goods held for resale
Goods pending customers’ acceptance

Goods held for resale and goods pending customers’ acceptance mainly
represent computer equipment and software products.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in ‘cost of goods
sold" amounted to HK$510,438,000 during the nine months ended 31st
December 2010 (twelve months ended 31st March 2010: HK$738,832,000).

e E 558 0A
R KR IR 2 R L £

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of receivables

&Y 5 R IE — 5 AR
B EME ZRIRZ FERBE D

Trade receivables — net
Less: non-current portion of trade receivables

Current portion of trade receivables EWE SHIEZ R D

All non-current receivables are due within five years from the balance sheet
date.

Y (FEA) B A R REER 22K
BREFEE Y EBUEBTHE - HRBRE
HEE  FEERREEE QN EERSE -

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—2-2F —TTHF
+=A=+-8 =A=+-A8
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FHT

27,499 21,124

49,473 80,696

76,972 101,820

RIEBEZENREREPENZENTIER
BRI MR o

RBE_ZE—ZF+-_A=+—HBILh@EA
BRAERI LA HEKN] 2EEKRE B
5104380008 (BHE—T—ZTFE=A=1+—8H
1E+=1@ A : 738,832,000 7T ) °

31st December
2010
—2-2%
+=A=+—H
HK$’000

FHT

165,903
(312)

165,591
(1,869)

163,722

31st March
2010
—E—ZTF
=A=+—H
HKS$'000
FHET

151,402
(2,851)

148,551
(627)

147,924

RS EUHEONEERRAFAZ

Hp o
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers for 30 days AEBZABEFPER EHZ=H0BEER-
and has credit control procedures to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances AEBRREEEESBRAKEERBRZE &
are reviewed regularly by senior management. 1K o = AR B 28 1 480 B 2 SRIB SRR A1 1 B
EE -
An ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables as at the balance sheet date, BB SRBAENEEARBENREHAZ
based on ageing from payment due date is as follows: BREC AT

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-ZF —E T

+=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHAT

Current BIEA 126,695 119,171
Within 30 days 30K AR 15,992 9,583
31 - 60 days 31E60K 4,234 11,488
61 - 90 days 612 90K 6,454 3,730
Over 90 days B AI0R 12,528 7,430
165,903 151,402
As at 31st December 2010, trade receivables of HK$38,896,000 (31st March R-ZE—ZTF+_A=+—H BRESXK
2010: HK$29,380,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a TH38,896,0008 L (—_E—EF=A=+—8:
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of 29,380,000/ 7T ) /& B B EAE R TR B - 2 5
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: WE 5 kIR % N S B R A2 8k 2 T

FEM ZERKESRBZERRATMT

31st December 31st March

2010 2010

—E-ZfF —T—EF

+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT T

Past due less than 90 days BEAT B90H 26,680 24,801
Past due over 90 days 1 HRER 3390 B 12,216 4,579

38,896 29,380
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

As at 31st December 2010, trade receivables of HK$312,000 (31st March 2010:
HK$2,851,000) of the Group were past due and impaired. The ageing of these
receivables are over 90 days, and full provision has been made on these
receivables. The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to several

customers, which are experiencing financial difficulties.

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar T
United States dollar ETT
Renminbi AR
Thai Baht TR
Others Aot

As at 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010, the carrying amounts of
trade receivables approximate their fair values. The fair value of the non
current portion of trade receivables are based on cash flows discounted

using a rate based on the borrowing rate of 7% (31st March 2010: 7%).

RZZE—ZF+A=+—H FEEZERK
féf% RIE3120008 T (ZE—EF=A=+—
H 2,851,000/ ) ERERE TR E - BR#EE
WSk I8 2 BR ik FR#E100 B - 3 B 3 1t 55 FE Uk 3B
YEH 2 8RB o B BB FE W TR TE = E A
BREERSEEFHRM -

JEWE 5 FRIARFE LA T 5| S ¥ 5HE

31st December 31st March
2010 2010

—ZF T T
+=—A=+—8 =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER TET
109,242 69,695

15,047 33,571

16,909 13,867

13,471 25,130

11,234 9,139

165,903 151,402

RZBE—ZFF+_A=+—HBHRZZT-ZF=
A=+—B BEESFEZREERLAR
BERE FBWRESREZIERDEIBHRAE
BENRBENRBEEERWR R SRTE (=
E—ZF=A=1+—H:7%)°
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Movements of the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables are

as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the period/year 1 FE VR

Provision for impairment of receivables FEWUKRIE 2 R R

Reversal of provision for impairment of [0 fE R IR B 2 B
receivables

Receivables written off during the period/ HA R A AU E 2
year as uncollectible FEMFRIE

Exchange realignment E 5 B AR

Balance at the end of the period/year Hi S F IR R

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been
included as part of administrative expenses, selling expenses and other cost

of services in the consolidated income statement (note 10).

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when

there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

REHZERWESFIE 2 BERBRZBIT

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-ZF —E-FF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
2,851 4,535
863 1,511
(1,597) (1,930)
(1,811) (1,265)
6 _
312 2,851

FEUTRIE 2 BB 2 SR MR BR B AT AR A
BREREEATEAY HEBEAREMRE
AR —E85 (KizE10) o

BEERNG 2SR —RNAH TS KREEREIN
e B EH o

AREEA BT H EMERRIERER-
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 & & =% —

TE+-_A=+—RLAEA

The balance arises from equipment leased to customers under finance leases.

The contracts usually run for an initial period of 4 years, with an option for the

customers to acquire the leased asset at a nominal value. The total minimum

lease payments receivable under finance leases and their present values at

the period/year end are as follows:

Non-current receivables FE R B BB Wk IE
Finance leases — gross receivables FEWFEERERIAETE
Unearned finance income RERER 2 B & WA
Current receivables B FE WK IE

Finance leases — gross receivables FEWFEERERIAETE
Unearned finance income RERER 2 B & WA

Gross receivables from finance leases:
No later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

Unearned future finance income

on finance leases

Net investment in finance leases

The net investment in finance lease may be

KERMEREZ EWKIBAR
—FR
—FERNEAFA

BB HERIRECZ R KB E A

RBEHEZRERE

MEEE 2 REFER

analysed as follows: RAT 8D :
No later than 1 year —FR
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —FEEAFA

REBERERTE HEREBMEL AR -

HESHEER - RANF TRAREERN
EHEBERECEE- U NAREREEE
YR E M EFIRRE, R 2 RIRBFE R E
BIE:

31st March
2010
—T—FTF
ER=EF—E
HK$'000
FHET

31st December

HK$'000
TEx

3,846 =
(636) =

3,210 =

1,923 =
(9) =

1,914 =

1,923 =
3,846 =

5,769

(645) =

5,124 =

1,914 =
3,210 =

5,124 =



Other receivables

Deposits

Prepayments

Amount due from ultimate holding
company

Amounts due from former fellow
subsidiaries

Amount due from an associate

Other receivables, amount due from ultimate holding company, amounts

due from former fellow subsidiaries and an associate are unsecured, interest

free and repayable on demand.
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Group Company
rEH b NG|
31st December 31st March 31st December 31st March
2010 2010 2010 2010
—E-EF —T-TF —E-Ef —T-TF
tTZA=t+-H =A=t—-H +=ZB=t-H ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
THERT FAET TERT FET
H Ath FE WA IR 1,340 595 2 3
Ee 6,284 6,091 - =
BfRIE 15,469 17,998 358 559
RISIER R AR
512 - - =
HIEERNENEVSE S
- 2335 - =
AN DN - - - 47
23,605 27,019 360 609

H UK IR ~ B AR IEIR A B R AR - AT R) R Y
BRm R A RRRE R EER 28 RA
RERMEE
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

Group
S
31st December
2010
—E-ZF
+ZA=+—-H
HK$'000
THERT
Hong Kong dollar BT 12,726
Renminbi AR 2,192
New Taiwan dollar e 2,891
Others HAt 5,796
23,605
As at 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010, the carrying amounts of
other receivables, deposits and prepayments approximated their fair values.
As at 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010, the balance represented
contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and

progress billings.

BERTIA TN E M ETHE

Company

AAH
31st March 31st December 31st March
2010 2010 2010
—“F-%% —g-%% “T-%f
=A=+—H +ZA=t+-H =A=1+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT FET
17,435 360 609
1,821 - -
3,558 - -
4,205 - _
27,019 360 609
R-ZE—TF+-_A=+—HAR=-_ZT—TF=
RA=+—8"  HMEWKHIE Re RFERMNKIE

ZIEEEEEENABERS -

R_Z—FF+_A=+—AKR=F—TF=
R=+—8 E&8RIEMES 2 & KA INE #

5% AR B HE TR S 1R AN HE JE 73K o



Restricted bank deposits

Cash at bank and on hand
Short-term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted bank deposits represented fixed term deposit placed in
commercial banks that were pledged against certain banking facilities

granted to the Group.

Bank balances and short term bank deposits carry interest at market rates
with average interest rate of 0.03% and 0.69% (31st March 2010: 0.12% and

0.13%) per annum, respectively.

Restricted bank deposits are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
Thai Baht
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Group Company
by b UNG|

31st December 31st March 31st December 31st March
2010 2010 2010 2010
—Z-Z§ ZT-TF —E-Zf§ —T-TF
+=B=+-H =A=+—-H +=B=+-H =A=t+—-8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTAT TR FTAT
R HRITFR 1,924 29,538 - -
FIRFEES 132,309 264,079 8,240 5,793
KHEIRITIF R 63,243 15,909 - =
ReERAEEEY 195,552 279,988 8,240 5,793

VAR BIER1T 17 FOE T BUR B R 1T 2 E HifF
R ZEFREERUERREBERE TR
A o

=11}

IBITHEB R BRI ERIEMS AR F
BER RS BI E0.03%069% (—E—FF= 5
=+—H:012%%0.13%) °

A

ZRERITEFRIATINE M E

Group Company
rEE KAT

31st December 31st March 31st December 31st March
2010 2010 2010 2010
—E-%f§ —T-TF —E-2F —T-TF
t=ZA=+-8 =A=+—-H +=A=+-AH —A=1+—8~
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTAT TR FTAET
BT - 26,154 - =
037N 1,924 3384 - -

1,924 29,538 - =
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
Renminbi

New Taiwan dollar
United States dollar
Other

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised:
At 1st April 2009,
31st March 2010 and
31st December 2010

Issued and fully paid:
At the beginning of
the period/year

Exercise of share options

At the end of the period/year

BT
AR
6
X
Hity

HIRAEE0I0B T EBE

EERRA
RZZTNEFHA—AB-
—Z-TF
=A=+—HK
—E-TF

+-A=1+—8

BETRER:
/)

TR E

RE

HBekReSEYUTIERHE

Group
A%H

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—g-%F “T-%F
+=A=t-A =A=+-A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
161,953 235,530
1,333 1,824
18,058 17,751
2,963 12,252
11,245 12,631
195,552 279,988

Number of shares

RBER

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
“E-%F —ZT-TF
+=A=t-A =A=+-A
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
600,000 600,000
311,403 297,427
- 13,976
311,403 311,403

Company
KA

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—g-%% —“T-%f
+=A=+-H —A=t+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
8,230 5,786
7 4
3 3
8,240 5,793

Amount
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—g-%F “3-%f
+=A=t-B  =A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
60,000 60,000
31,140 29,743
- 1,397
31,140 31,140



During the twelve months ended 31st March 2010, the Company issued
13,976,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at the subscription prices ranging
from HKS$1.28 to HK$2.40 per share under the share options scheme of the

Company (Note 37).

The new shares rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue in all
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 & & = Z —

REVB|RRME

TEF+-RA=+—HBLENEA

REBEE-—ZT—TF=A=+—AL+=_fEA"
BIEARRE) 2 BEARFERT - 13,976,00018 & AR
FRRTE(E0.1078 7T MT LASR BB B BAR N1 287 7T
224078 7T TE (FFE37) ©

ZEHRERRERNAES B LEE RS

respects. fiL e

(@) Group (@ A~5E
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-ZF —E-FF
+=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(restated)
(231)
Note 2(d)
Bt EE2(d)
Special reserve W RIE 34,350 34,350
Property revaluation reserves E= A ] 63,685 36,801
Translation reserve & 3,277 1,632
Retained earnings REE BF| 219,842 197,195
321,154 269,978
() Movements of each component of the reserves of the Group are () AEBRHFHESHHZEHIHRLEE

set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. R -

ey
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(b) Company

At Tst April 2009

Profit for the year

Transfer to retained earnings
(Note 3(1))

Special dividend

for the twelve months ended

31st March 2009

At 31st March 2010

At 1st April 2010
Profit for the period

Forfeiture of unclaimed dividend

Interim dividend

for the nine months ended

31st December 2010

At 31st December 2010

=

F AR
BEZRRET
(H¥E30)

i

A

TENE
Jrf

REBE
A

’;

_1_

i

£ =
A=1+—H

RZZ—ZFMHA—H

H A5 A

SR UK RS

RHE-_T—T4F
+-A=+—"H
ENEAZFHRE

R-B-%F
+=A=+-A

H
18 A 255k E

Special
reserve
KRl
HK$'000
FHET

95,513

95,513

95513

95,513

(i) The special reserve of the Company represents the difference

between the par value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries and the

net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired, and the credit arising

from the reduction of share capital during the year ended 31st
March 1999. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as

amended), the contributed surplus shall not be distributable if

there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to

pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would

thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

(b) ZA&AF]
Share-
option Accumulated
reserve losses Total
BRERE 2itE#S FoEy
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET FHIT
361 (6,562) 89,312
- 282452 282452
(361) 361 -
- (286,491) (286,491)
- (10,240) 85,273
- (10,240 85,273
- 12,548 12,548
- 570 570
- (12,456) (12,456)
- (9,578) 85,935

AR B Z IR A A B R HRE
B8 B B BT AR A B AT 2 D
E{EEPTREBIH B AR EEFEZ
Z8R MERBE—-—NAAAF=H
=t+—RLEFEHRBRAMESLZ
ER-REARE-NAN—FQA
& (RERT) B A IERIE RIS
THEIE RIABSRAAIH DK -

(1) AABBRBRPEL IR E
ERER BRI NAE:
X

@ ARAEEZ TLRBELE
AR B R E B BTIRA
A BB 15 3 (B 2 400 o
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BN B ZHIENEE B RBNFEIH A 2 iRk

on payment due date, is as follows: DT

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet date, based

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—2-2F —TTF
+=-B=+—H =F=—68
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current BIEA 126,898 129,757
Within 30 days 30K AR 39,055 34,454
31 -60 days 31E60K 14,948 12,205
61 - 90 days 61290K 1,634 4,289
Over 90 days B IBIOK 10,465 9,145
193,000 189,850
The balances are denominated in the following currencies: HEERTIA TS B ETE

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-ZF —Z-TF
+=A=+—A8 =A=+—8~
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Hong Kong dollar BT 140,205 140,764
Renminbi ARHE 5,330 2,900
United States dollar T 33,520 27,052
Thai Baht 37 5,510 15,742
Others HAth 8,435 3,392
193,000 189,850

At 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010, the carrying values of trade —E-TF

payables approximated their fair values.

R=E—
B=+—

EBERE-

TEF_A=FT—HRK
H
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Group
r5E
31st December
2010
—E-Ef
+=ZB=+-H
HK$'000
THERT
Other payables H A FE 5 FOE 5,853
Accruals fExtE 39,934
Deferred income FLMZ)\ 456
Amount due to ultimate R BN R RIFRIE
holding company -
Amount due to an associate Y AUNEIE ] 1,455
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries KH%W% GE 492
48,190
The balances are denominated in the following currencies:
Group
S|
31st December
2010
—g-%%
+=ZR=+-H
HK$'000
TERT
Hong Kong dollar BT 42,479
Renminbi ARKE 1,723
Others HAh 3,988
48,190
At 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010, the carrying values of other
payables and accruals approximated their fair values.

The amounts due to the ultimate holding company, fellow subsidiaries and
associates are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand.

Company
VNG|

31st March 31st December 31st March
2010 2010 2010
—F-%F —8-%F —3-%F
=A=+—H +=ZA=+-H =R=1+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TERT FAET
13,759 227 4,805
37,234 11,110 4,509
631 - -
597 - -
66 2 -
52,287 11,339 9314

HEERTIA TSI G ETE

Company
NG|
31st March 31st December 31st March
2010 2010 2010
—2-%Tf —g-2f —E-3F
=A=+—H +=ZBA=+-H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TERT FHET
41,506 11,339 9314
2,380 - -
8401 - _
52,287 11,339 9314
R-E—TF+_A=+—BR_T—TF=
R=+—RH EMmENREREFERZET
BEERERNAEBEES-

Vs Sl ONGINIC BN 1= NGNS L YN
*AIEE?%EW~§EE&¢E$§%‘&¥1§‘%O
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to:

(i) delivery of goods which is recognised in the consolidated income

statement upon the delivery of goods; and

(i) provision of service which is recognised in the consolidated income

statement over the service period stipulated in the respective

customer contract.

The movement in the deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

At 1st April 2010 and 2009

Tax charged directly to equity

Realised as part of the discontinued
operations (note 45)

Tax credited to the consolidated income

statement (note 14)

At 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010

RZT—TFR=ZTTNF
mA—H
Fi18 5 AR AN E B HIBR
BHRAERIEEB 2 —HD
(P E45)
STAGREBER 2 BIE (MIEE14)

FEU IR BN T At 15550 AT U R 2 FA 3K

(i)

RN Em (AR EmRXNEER S Bk

®R) &

RERY (ARNEREF A ORIBNRS
HRERE BRRER)

EEFREHREEZERHMT

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-=F —T-FF
+=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(restated)
(271)
Note 2(d)
i IG)
10,464 14,571
5,312 3,204
- (6,400)
2,220 911)
17,996 10,464
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward

to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2010, the Group had unused
tax losses of HK$ 13,637,000 (31st March 2010: HK$19,288,000) available

for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised

in respect of HK$646,000 (31st March 2010: HK$1,393,000) of such losses.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$12,991,000 (31st March 2010: HK$17,895,000) due to unpredictability of
future profit streams, of which HK$8,462,000 (31st March 2010: HK$8,713,000)
will expire within 1 to 5 years, HK$3,514,000 (31st March 2010: HK$3,570,000)
will expire within 5 to 10 years and HK$1,015,000 (31st March 2010:
HK$5,612,000) with unlimited expiry date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The movement

in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances
within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the period/year is as follows:

Accelerated tax
depreciation

MERETE
HK$'000
THT
At 1st April 2009 RZZETNFEA—AH 10,725
(Credited)/charged to REEEEREA
consolidated income statement (Rt A) /g
— as previously stated — MR AT (989)
— effect of change in accounting —SHHREGNTE
policy (Note 2(d)) (Pf3E2(d)) -
— as restated — =5 (989)
Realised as part of the discontinued BHADKIECEER Y
operation (note 45) — &5 (HizE4s) (6,400)
Charged to equity B RAF Mk =
At31stMarch 2010and Tst April 2010~ RZ=Z—FF=A
=+—Bk
*f—fiﬂﬁ 5] 3336
Charged to consolidated Wixa BaRANR
income statement 2,097
Charged to equity B Rk =
At 315t December 2010 R-Z—ZF
+=A=+-—"H 5433

ARIFIBEER IR EHBARER S
*XJE&ﬁﬂjﬂ%LA*‘ZEE%Z%BE%WE;EL%
EBHREE-R=_T—ZTF+=-A=+—H'&
SEBAREAFHIEEE136370008 T (=T —
THE= A=+—H :19,288000/8 7T ) A FA{EK
R A Al o JEIE TR I8 & 2 B 3L B B B 18646,000
BIL(ZZE—TF=H=+—H 1,393,000
E)Eﬁw‘u \* iﬁ E‘J*X/ﬁnﬂj /E H&I
ﬁﬁfiﬁﬁTz 29910008 T (ZE—FF = A
=+—H 17895000/ T ) FERELEHBEE
H 8462000 (ZE—TF=A=+—H:
8,713,0007% 7T ) #5 FA1 254 A B H + 03,514,000
BL(ZZE—TF = =+—H :3,570,000%
T ) & 52104 A B HA & 62 £ [R H81,015,000
BIL(ZE—FF=A=+—H:5612000%
JT) ©

EAAAKARHAEERHFENIAT AR RN
AEORITHEN BERSEERABER
BERABEAEHE R EENIREER &
BEREAEEREE B FA - RIERS
MEERAE (NEHER—PREERZEH
AT ZAE :

Revaluation of

properties Tax loss Total
MEEM BB Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET
4153 (307) 14,571

592 78 (319

(592) = (592)

= 78 O11)

= = (6,400)

3,204 = 3,204
7357 (229) 10,464

= 123 2,220

5312 = 5312

12,669 (106) 17,996
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The analysis of deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

BEEBIAEAR
— MREE2E AR E

Deferred tax liabilities — to be recovered after

more than 12 months

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 16th
October 1997 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to any
employee and/or director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted

to any individual under the Scheme shall not exceed 25% of the aggregate
number of shares for the time being issued and issuable under the Scheme.
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of offer, upon
payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of 80%
of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options,

and the nominal value of the shares.

EERBEREZAMNMT

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—EB-2F —Z—TF
+=ZA=+-—H =F=—68
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(restated)

(&51)

Note 2(d)

B EE2(d)

17,996 10,464

RAARARSEEFAHEARZEMEE R
FEERERBRER ARRR—NANEF
T AR BRA—IREAER B ([%aHE]) -
RBZAB AR T EMALTZBEERRE
BROBE  RZEIFERERZ I AIRTRS
MR 48882 25% B 3% H B IR M AR R H B
HIMEET 28R A A - M IR H R RS 18
TERRE-TTEEAARRESEE
A& DR R BER H A BAT RERR 5
B 7B 2 B 2 A W T (B 2. 80% K A% £ T (B A
ERZBEE -
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Pursuant to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange which became effective from

1st September 2001, any options granted after 1st September 2001 must
comply with the provisions of the revised Chapter 17. In order for the
Company to be able to grant options to its director and/or other eligible
participants after 1st September 2001, the Scheme was terminated and a
new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to

a resolution passed in the general meeting held on 8th August 2002. As a
result, the Company can no longer grant any further share option under the
Scheme. However, all share options granted prior to 1st September 2001 will

remain in full force and effect.

Under the New Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant options to
eligible employees, including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. The total number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the New Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. Options granted must be taken up
within 28 days of the date of offer, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration
per grant. There is no general requirement that an option must be held for
any minimum period before it can be exercised but the directors of the
Company is empowered to impose at its discretion any such minimum
period at the time of grant of any particular option. The period during which
an option may be exercised will be determined by the directors of the
Company at its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of (a)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options;
and (c) the nominal value of the shares. The New Scheme will expire on 7th
August 2012.

RIBHRZMES EHRRAE+EEZER (R
—EE-—FAR-BER) RZEBEZT-—Fh
A—BERHZ EBRENEFAKIETE
TEEZBHEX -REBARRRAIR_EZT—F
NA—HRAEEER REMAERDEE
KB NARERLEZE XRER
“EE_FNANARTZRERS LBBZ
REBFRRN— B RS ([Fhatdl]) - A
b RRAB NS BRBEZ SE - T RHER
BRE-AT R_ZT-—FALA-AMER
HZFBBRERDARE TREORKA -

RIBHAE ARBEZETRAEERES (B
BARARRENBRARZESR) & T EREIA
RIBAR B  RIFHTE AR 2 BB E
A R 2 D BB MSHBAEAR R R RE(E
fil 2 B B AT IR 2.10% © 7 Efa] G 4 T (]
AL ZBRERREZRMOEE TEEBR
REPMERIRREZ B BITREG Z21% - XL
B ARE L B R RAESR ERNE
AR HR A BT ERR(E - B E K
HE B RBAES A ATTEERERSARA
BREZ TAKEMR EARRESTERE
AT AT 55 E B AU B - BB R AN R AT SR AR
HR - A fTERBREZREAARRESR
RBMISETE  EEMBRE-—RTERELA
HEMOFRRITE -TREDNRARAES
BT ERTELIRAT=ZEFZ2RSE: ()
RO H B AR R P 2 B b)AX
BRI BRI R AR5 A MR M2
FHRTHE: ROROEE - FAEER =T
——FN\AtBEm-
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The following table discloses details of the share options held by employees TERBEEEES (PIEES)MEANERER
(including directors) under the Scheme and the New Scheme and HE-_ZE—ZTFE=A=+—HI+=-BAARIE
" N

movements in such holdings during the twelve months ended 31st March

2010:
Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options
RIEBRERFRTZRE
Balance at Balance at
1.4.2009 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 31.3.2010 Exercise
R-BBhE during during during during R=ZB—ZF price per
Date of grant A—H the year the year the year theyear =A=1+—H Exercise period share
Rt B# ZBE  REARM RERTE REAXR REREH ZBE TEAR SRTEE
HKS
BT
31.3.2010
—E-Z5=H=+-H
Scheme
il dl
20.102001 to &
19.10.1999 1,835,000 = (1,780,000) (55,000) = = 19.10.2009 230
1222002t0 &
11.2.2000 55,000 = = (55,000) = = 11.2.2010 335
172002 to &
30.6.2000 40,000 - - (40,000 - - 3062010 340
2772003 to &
27.7.2001 2,008,000 - (1,912,000 (96,000) = - 26.7.2011 240
3,938,000 - (3,692,000) (246,000) = =
Weighted average

exercise price
MEFETTEE 238 - 235 275 - =
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Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

RITEBRERMBTZRER

Balance at Balance at
1.4.2009 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 31.3.2010 Exercise
R=BEREF during during during during R=Z—-2F price per
Date of grant HB—AH the year the year the year theyear =A=1—H Exercise period share
B AH ZHBE REARE RERTE REAXR REREH ZHE TEHR SRTEE
HKS
BT
31.3.2010
—EZ-Z5=fB=1+-H
New Scheme
até
20.11.2003 to &
20.11.2002 1,430,000 - (1,430,000) - - - 19.11.2012 134
6.8.2005to £
6.8.2004 1,296,000 = (1,280,000) (16,000) = = 582014 1.28
962006 to &
9.6.2005 2,364,000 = (2,364,000) = = = 86.2015 1.98
1962007 to &
19.6.2006 2,768,000 - (2,768,000) - - - 1862016 1.95
30.6.2006 to &
30.6.2006 1,050,000 = (1,034,000) (16,000) = = 296.2016 1.95
306.2007 to &
30.6.2006 536,000 - (536,000) - - - 296.2016 1.95
4102008 to &
4.10.2007 2,618,000 - (872,000) (1,746,000) - - 3.10.2017 232
12,062,000 - (10,284,000) (1,778,000) - -
Weighted average
exercise price
MEFETEE 189 - 182 231 - -
For options granted under the New Scheme, other than the 1,050,000 HIRBH TR E 2 BREMS - BRR=ZZ
options granted on 30th June 2006 which are vested immediately, the rests NENA=THRE R BB 21,050,000
are vested equally over 3 years from the date of grant. DRI A TREREE XN B BBt

B=FRENEE-
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In respect of the share options exercised during the twelve months ended
31st March 2010, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise is
HKS$1.96 per share. The weighted average closing price immediately before

the date of exercise is HK$2.59 per share.

The outstanding options under the Scheme and the New Scheme that were
not exercised were lapsed and determined on 20th October 2009 and 13th
October 2009 respectively.

During the twelve months ended 31st March 2010, the Group recognised
total expense of HK$361,000 in relation to equity-settled share-based

payment transactions.

No consideration is received during the nine months ended 31st December
2010 from employees for taking up the shares under the options (twelve

months ended 31st March 2010: HKSNil).

No share option has been granted under the New Scheme during the nine
months ended 31st December 2010. There was no share option outstanding
at 31st December 2010.

Defined contribution plans:

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees. The MPF
Scheme is established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance

in December 2000. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group's contributions vest fully with

the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

PR _E—TF=A=+—HIE+=@ATE
ZHEREMS RITE BBz NETHRER
1.96/87T - REHE7T(E B HART 2 N KB
F2598 T °

é%%?riu&%ﬁ FFEITET 2 MARTTEBEREE S
MRZZETNFE+A-TEE=ZZEZThETA
+=8 905(&%2&0
REBE_ZT—ZF=A=+—Hit+=
¢%@Exﬂi$ ﬁLAH%ﬁsEHZx%ﬁE #@Ffﬂ
361,000/ 7T °

RBE—Z-—ZF+-_A=+—HILNLER"
jﬁ?ﬁﬁ‘jﬂ@é\ap BEARREIR T 2 B fn ) {5 5 W
HXETEHHE(%ZI_ —TFE=A=+—HLt
TEA ) -

BE_ZT-ZTF+_A=t+—HILAEA X
ﬁ’fﬂ%ﬁﬁ%?‘itﬂf{ﬁﬁﬁﬂx%°ﬁ’$:§—%¢
TZA=+—8  WEEA EARTTEZ A -

REMRETE:
REBRMAEAERES SN —HRES
gl RERFE DN _TETF T+ AIRE®
HERTESIERR - HRDIREEEAT &
ZEBOLFE UHBERESTEZR
A|ZEZ MR AR A BRIk e B ST 8l
Zﬁ?ﬁﬂ%ﬁ)\?%ﬂzgﬁﬁﬁ'EEZI»‘EE%“

DRFN - NEBEMEES T EHRE - #
ﬂﬂﬂiiﬂﬁwf A -
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Defined benefit plan:

The Group also operates a defined benefit plan for a qualifying director of
the Company. Under the plan, the director is entitled to retirement benefits
based on 120% or 175.25% of final average salary multiplied by completed
months of service on attainment of a retirement age of 60, or of age at least
50 with 25 years of services. The assets of the fund are held separately from
those of the Company, in funds under the control of trustees. The scheme is
non-contributory on the part of the director and the Company is obliged to

meet the full cost of all benefits due to the director under the plan.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010
were carried by Watson Wyatt Hong Kong Limited, an independent actuary.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related current
service cost and past service cost were measured using the projected unit

credit method. The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate Frig=
Expected return on plan assets TEHAET &1 & E R W
Expected rate of salary increases L

Expected return rate on plan assets is determined by reference to historical

data of Hang Seng Index.

RERAGTE:
RRBINAEERZ ERE R —BREBFG
Z-RBEZTE EEEREARETAFS
2.120%88,175.25%FF bAZE B3R RN F #R 7N TR sk &
DA+ FRME RS =+ AFRE RS AR
ZERREN -ZEeZEERRGRARENZE
SRE BANREESATER -ESHEAR
ZETEMEL R MA R RIZAEX R EZE &
R FEZ AR 2B -

BUEEMECENBRAERARANTEZ
BEARKR-_Z—ZF+_A=+—HR=ZE
—ZFE=A=t+—HZAETBRNEEZHESE
TERF—HZEE REBMNEMLE FRALRE
RRFS A AN R B 1E RIS AR 2 BRE TR A Ta AT &
MEBEEAHE -IEAZEZREBRRET

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-EF —E-TF
+=B=+—H =A=+—H
1.5% 3.6%

6.0% 6.0%

3.0% 2.0%

G B EE MR TIELEEERBE
S EIRMEEE °
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Defined benefit plan: (Continued)

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets was
HK$9,135,000 (31st March 2010: HK$8,267,000) and the present value of the
funded obligations was HK$8,833,000 (31st March 2010: HK$7,845,000). The
actuarial value of these assets represented 103.4% (31st March 2010: 105.4%)
of the benefits that had accrued to members. The surplus of HK$302,000
(31st March 2010: HK$422,000) is to be cleared over the estimated remaining

service period of the current membership of approximately two years.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement during the

period/year in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

Current service costs I B AR 745 A AR
Interest cost B
Expected return on plan assets TEHAGT &1 8 E B ®
Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognised RHE, FERERZ
in the period/year TR () BiE

REBFGE: (8
BEMMERT  stEIEE 2 MER9,1350008 7T
(ZZ—ZTF=F=+—H :8267000/87T) *
EC BRI EARSS330008 L (ZE—FTF =
A=4+—H:7845000%7T) - WEEAE 2 EE
BEEENRKEREFNZ21034% (ZE—F
F=HA=+—H:1054%) ° 302,000/ 0.2 B
ZE2-TF= A=+—H:42200087T) #H
WA KB 2 fh 5T TR & AR 75 B TR 40 R 4 Rk 8 o

RAHRE,FE A E R EERR RSB
mRZ SN

For the For the

nine months ended twelve months ended

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-ZF HE-_T—TF
+=ZA=+-—H =F=—68
IEhfEA IE+=1@A
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

246 195

282 136

(496) (271)

(311) 81

(279) 141
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Defined benefit plan: (Continued)
The credit for the period of HK$279,000 (twelve months ended 31st March
2010: charge of HK$141,000) has been included in administrative expenses.

The actuarial gain on plan assets was HK$703,000 (twelve months ended 31st
March 2010: HK$2,492,000).

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's
obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows:

Present value of funded obligations ESEREZHE

Fair value of plan assets AEEEZARER

Surplus B

Net actuarial gain not recognised M R R 2 F i W

Net liability arising from AERMEEFEELEZ
defined benefit obligation BEFERE

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations in the
current period were as follows:

At 1st April 2010 and 2009 RZE—ZTFR
—ZETNFMA—H

Current service costs 35 BRF AR 745 B 7S

Interest cost | ESND N

Actuarial loss/(gain) BEERE (W)

At 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010 R=ZZE—ZF+-_A=1+T—HK
—T-TE=FA=+—H

A A

RERAE: (&)

BN A Z B AB2790008 L (BRE=F —
TE=A=+—HIE+=-BEA - FAIXRESL
141,000 70) B B IERITERE A ©

TEIEEZBE R A7030008 T (HE-Z
—ZTF=A=+—RH1+=1@A :2492,000%
JL) °

RARRIERARERMTE 2 REEEMIIA

AERERZGBMT

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-ZF —T—TF
+=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT T

8,833 7,845
(9,135) (8,267)
(302) (422)

1,196 1,760

894 1,338

AEARERMNEEZREZLBNT

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-2F —E-TF
+=-B=+—H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHT

7,845 8,226

246 195

282 136
460 (712)

8,833 7,845
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

REBAE (5

Defined benefit plan: (Continued) 4
RNEFFEEEZ ARBEZHMNT

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current period were as

follows:

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-ZF -5
+=ZA=+—8H =HA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THET
At 1st April 2010 and 2009 RZE—ZTFR

“ZERAFEOA—H 8,267 5775
Expected return on plan assets TEHAGT 818 E B ® 496 271
Actuarial gain BE K= 207 2,221
Contributions from the employer fBEHK 165 =

At 31st December 2010 and 31st March 2010 R-E—ZF+-_A=+—BkF
—E-ZEF=A=+—H 9,135 8267

AHEEETERAREHIBEEZAN LN

follows: T

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets are as

31st December 31st March

2010 2010

—E-2F —T-TF

+=A=+-8 =A=+-~

% %

Equity instruments RATA 80 78
Debt instruments BT A 17 18
Cash Be 3 4
100 100



Automated Systems Holdings Limited (5 B R 55 @A R A 7

Annual Report 2010 £

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVB|RME

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Profit before income tax
From continuing operations
From discontinued operations
Adjustments for:
— Share of results of associates (note 21)
- Share-based payment expense
- Amortisation of intangible assets (note 20)
— Depreciation and amortisation of property,
plant and equipment (note 18)
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (see (note (a) below)
- Gain on disposal of the GMS business
(note 45)
— Fair value gain on revaluation of investment
properties (note 19)
— (Reversal of )/impairment loss of
intangible assets (note 20)
— Interest income (note 8)
Changes in working capital:
- Inventories
—Trade receivables
— Finance lease receivables
— Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
— Amounts due from customers for
contract work
- Restricted bank deposits
—Trade payables
— Other payables and accruals
— Receipts in advance

— Deferred income

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

For the
nine months ended

31st December

2010
BE-Z—%F
+=B=+—8H

EhMEA
HK$'000
FET

W BT 45 B4 A g )

REFFEEE T 44,181

REBKIELEET -

KRR

—FEAGEE & N R 2 4E (MisE21) (224)
—ABD BRI 2 -
— | A ESE (M:E20) -
— W BRE R E R
(MI5E18) 11,202
— HEWE - BB MR 2 W
(R TXHEE@)) (227)
—HERNEE RS K
(Hfd5E45) -
—EREREMEZ
RAREEEN (FE9) (5,800)
— @B EE (BERE),
R EEE (P EE20) (200)
S ON ) (333)
EEEeE
—-FE 24,822
—EWE 5 IR (17,045)
— B A E R W RE (5,124)
—H i EWRIE R R
TETFRIE 3,414
— BN ITREEWREFRIE
(71,236)
—XBRFIERITIF K 27,614
— B S HIE 3,150
—H b e RIE R FEGH B F (3,527)
—Ta ez (74,876)
—IRFEMA 49
e (FTR) /Fi3ES (64,160)

For the

twelve months ended
31st March

2010
HE-Z—ZF
=A=+—8€
IE+=@A
HKS$'000

FHT

53617
73,286

(1,714)
361
735

(69,116)

(3,590)

200
(942)

2,647
(22,236)

(2,158)

(27,239)
(29,538)
38,351
(9212)
45,484

24

75,815
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Note:

(@) Inthe cash flow statement, proceeds from the disposal of property,

plant and equipment comprise:

P &L :

@ MNERSRERA HEWE HEERE

ZFRRIABE

For the For the
nine months ended twelve months ended
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-Z-ZF BE_Z-—TF
+=—A=+—8H :ﬂ:+fEi
wEA@EA IE+=1@A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Net book amount of property, W BB REEZ
plant and equipment (note 18) BREFE (KizE18) 81 181
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE - BERZEZ
plant and equipment (note 10) W25 (FIEE10) 227 62
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEYE - BERZEZ
plant and equipment FriS kI8 308 243

REEER - Kil?ﬁ?}%?ﬁ%ﬁ S ERL AR
THHBERETHAZTREREMEZE ZARK
BEMAANSEEAENT

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of certain

of its office premises and computer equipment which fall due as follows:

31st December 31st March

2010 2010

—E-2F —E-TF

+=A=+-8 =A=+-Hg

HK$'000 HKS'000

FHET FAT

No later than 1 year —FR 8,926 6216

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —FBERAFRA 4,245 3,238

13,171 9,454

Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term of two to three MAETRBEZHOFA—_E=FEFn— K M
years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases. SEERBENZ E-

BRRBZEHTFH=FEE— R H2EFE
years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases. H’ﬁﬁ ez k-

Leases for computer equipment are negotiated for an average term of three
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Capital expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not

provided for

BERIMEREHEZME
=Rz BEARRX

At 31st December 2010, the Group had contracted with a customer in

respect of certain computer equipment and land and buildings under

operating leases as follows:

No later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years

—FR
—FREAFEA

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-EF —E-TF
+=ZB=+—8H =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

411 1,378

RZZE—ZF+_A=+—H AEEHEME
TERRBALR LM EET 2 EEXBHRETS

HESLUNNE
31st December 31st March
2010 2010
—E-ZfF —T—EF
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—8”
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
1,527 1,855
873 2474

2,400 4,329
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

As at 31st December 2010, bank deposits held as security for banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$ 1,924,000 (31st March 2010:
HK$29,538,000) (Note 30). At 31st December 2010, the amount of available
bank facilities is HK$112,230,000 (31st March 2010: HK$29,538,000) and
performance bond of HK$31,330,000 (31st March 2010: HK$29,538,000) has

been issued by the Group to customers as security of contracts.

Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods supplied to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$44,700,000 as at 31st December 2010 (31st
March 2010: HK$51,500,000). The amount utilised against goods supplied as
at 31st December 2010 which was secured by the corporate guarantee was
approximately HK$3,700,000 (31st March 2010: HK$700,000).

At 31st December 2010, the Group's leasehold land and buildings of
approximately HK$129,300,000 (31st March 2010: HKSNil) and investment
properties of approximately HK$24,700,000 (31st March 2010: HKSNil) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities of the Group as mentioned in Note
43.

At 31st December 2010, the Group's restricted bank balances were pledged
to secure the banking facilities of the Group of HK$1,924,000 (31st March
2010: HK$29,538,000) (Note 30).

RARITFRAEERRTREZEENR -
—ZEF+ZA=+—HB%E1,9240008 T (=
T—TF=F=+—H:2953800087C) (FizE
30) R-TE—TFE+-_A=+—H A&EEHA
FIRTTREE ©58/5112,23000087C (=2 —ZF
= A=+—H:29538000% ) kAR F 1T
ERE KRR 2 B 491R & 531,330,000/ 70 (=
T—TF=F=+—H 295380004 7T) °

R-ZE—ZTFE+-_A=+—0 BEEFTLE
E & Emimis T =778 R Al #E R 497/344,700,000
BT (ZZT—ZTF=H=+—H:51,500000%
) RZZE—TE+-_A=1+—8 #ZFN
ARAERERNFAHEERMBANEELD
7337000008 T (ZE—FF=A=+—8:
700,000% 7T.) ©

W EE43FTE - R —ZFF+_A=+—8"
REE 2 TS+ R AEF49129,300,0008 7T (=
T—TF=A=+—RH :TBT)REBEYWE
#924,7000008 T (ZE—ZTF=RA=+—H:
THAITT) BREASE ZRITRE 2 1 -

R-ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H ~AEB2Z
PR Il R 1T 45 821,924,000/ 0 (ZE—ZTF = A
=+—H :29,538000/ 7t) B A E A& E $R1T
& 2 B (HMHEE30) ©
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

On 24th April 2009, Computer Sciences Corporation (‘CSC"), the former
ultimate holding company of the Company, entered into a conditional
agreement with an independent third party to transfer its controlling
interest in the Company to a third party (the “Share Purchase Agreement”).
The conditions precedent to the Share Purchase Agreement include, inter
alia, the completion of a conditional agreement entered into between the
Company and CSC Computer Sciences HK Limited (“CSC HK”, the former
fellow subsidiary of the Company) on 24th April 2009 (hereinafter referred to
as the “Global Account Transfer Agreement”) and the payment of a special
dividend of 92.0 HK cents per share to the then shareholders of the Company
(the “Special Dividend”). The Global Account Transfer Agreement and the
Special Dividend were approved in the special general meeting of the
Company held on 17th July 2009.

The closing of the Global Account Transfer Agreement took place on

28th August 2009. Pursuant to the terms of the Global Account Transfer
Agreement, the Group has transferred its GMS business to CSC HK (the
“Disposal”, which is effected through transfer of service contracts, customer
orders, hardware, software and licensed intellectual property) for a cash
consideration of HK$125 million. The completion of the Share Purchase
Agreement took place on 23rd September 2009. Details of the above are
set out in the Company’s joint announcements dated 6th May 2009, 28th
August 2009, 22nd September 2009 and 23rd September 2009 made by
Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited and the Company and the Company’s
circular dated 30th June 2009 and the announcement dated 17th July 2009.

R-ZZBZAFEWNA=-+ME - ARQF A
% #2472 B A F] Computer Sciences Corporation

(TCSC BB E=HFIL T —HEIKER
B U ER ARG A EREREETS
=7 (MERBE]) - Z B R RS L REKE
ORI B HE - ANA R EECSC Computer Sciences
HK Limited ([CSCHK ] - 2R 22 B #9 A1 R R B8 2
AR—ZTTNAFMA =AM A &G
M (TXERRRREEERZ]) R

LA R 722 B & I AR R 2 A 45 B AR B B AR 92.0
AL (TRFRIAR R ) © IRPRARTE B 53 frp ok B A5 7l
REERAAFTRZTENF LA+ HRAET
ZRREFRIR S EALE

EBREEEEREN _EEZAENA=TN\R
RS- BBIRIKRIBEEHGENIRT  NEE
£ A125,000,000/ 7T 1938 & (B » [AICSC HKEZ 3%
HERREERGER ([HE] BESERYS
A BFRIE B S REERENSE
BAERLE) BRIFZER-ZEZNFNA
Z+=H%EK Ll BB F BN EBE KK
B (B8 BATREARABMEREBRA
“ETZNFRANE ZEFEAENA-TAN
H —ZZNFNAF+ZBE=ZZFZTNFA
AZ+=RZARRBERE RAARAH
ATEEANFEANA=TREZBERARBRHRAS
TENFLATEHEZAERN-
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An analysis of the results and cash flows of the discontinued operations for REE

the twelve months ended 31st March 2010 is as follows:

Revenue

Expenses

Profit before income tax from discontinued operations

Income tax expense

Profit after income tax from discontinued operations

Pre-tax gain on disposal of the GMS business (note a)

Income tax expense

Post-tax gain on disposal of the GMS business

Profit from discontinued operations

Net cash outflow from operating activities
Net cash inflow from investing activities

Net cash flow from financing activities

Total net cash inflow from discontinued operations

Automated Systems Holdings Limited B &) & £t 52 @A R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVB|RRME

For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

M

KA BRI SR 2R ST AR R
PS>

KB B R IEEEER 2R EHIRER
HEIRIE IR RIS E TS Z BR LRI TS
(Pff=Ea)
FiS 55 %
HERRE BRI ES 2B BIR TS
A DA IR E R 257
REXBEBRE R HFR
RETHAERERAFA

REGDMERSRAFRR

BERIFEEEBREREMALFE

A=+—RHLE+=@EAE

XENRBHZREDNMT

For the

twelve months
ended 31st March
2010
HE-_Z—ZF
EH=EF—F
IE+=@A
HKS'000

TR

30,070
(25,900)

4,170
(688)

3482

69,116

69,116

72,598

(11,767)
119,091

107,324
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Note a:

The composition of the gain on disposal of the GMS business is as follows:

FisEa :

HERRERRGEBAE ARAT :

For the

twelve months ended

31st March 2010

BE-—T—-ZF

ERET=0H

E+=18A

HK$'000

FAT

Sales proceed from the Disposal ZIENEMSIHER 125,007
Less: directly attributable costs W B EAER A

Property, plant and equipment (note 18) W B R (M) (37,926)

Intangible assets (note 20) R A E (MisE20) (854)

Other directly attributable costs Hih B REIAKAR 17,111

Gain on disposal of the GMS business HERREEREEB G 69,116

The Group was controlled by CSC which had ceased to be a related party

of the Company on 23rd September 2009 (i.e. the date of the completion

of the Share Purchase Agreement (Note 45)). Upon completion of the Share
Purchase Agreement, Hong Kong Teamsun has become the immediate
holding company of the Company. As at 31st December 2010, Hong Kong
Teamsun owns 65.4% of the Company’s shares. The remaining 34.6% of the
shares are widely held at 31st December 2010. The ultimate parent company

of the Company is Teamsun.

AEBEHCCHES HR=ZFAFNA
Z+=H (ANEER BTk B E (FTsEas) )T
BAEARRIBEAL - RNBRBETRE &S
ERBREKBARARZEEERAR -R=F
—ZEE+-_A=+—R EFEBRREEAR
AFIRID 2654% - A—B—FBE+-A=+—
B -8R 3469 D B E M A TFTREE - A QA
R RFBEBRAK



Transactions with related parties:

Nature of transaction

Ultimate holding company:
Purchase by the Group
Other income by the Group

Expenses charged to the Group

Immediate holding company:
Expenses charged by the Group

Expenses charged to the Group

Fellow subsidiaries:

Purchase by the Group

Former fellow subsidiaries:
Sales by the Group
Staff costs recharged by the Group
Rentals and administrative expenses

charged to the Group

Former ultimate holding company:
Rentals and administrative expenses

charged to the Group

The associates:
Sales by the Group
Purchases by the Group
Staff costs charged by the Group
Rentals and administrative expenses

charged to the Group

Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at normal g5

economical terms that are consistently applied to all customers and

vendors.
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

For the For the

nine months ended twelve months ended

31st December 31st March
2010 2010
BE-_ZT—ZF BHE_T—TF
+=B=+—8H Eﬂ:‘f’*ﬂ
IEAEA IE+=1@A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
XEME
BARPERR A )
rEEEE 75 597
AEBEEMBA 12 =
AEEST N ZHAX 129 110
HEZERAR
AEBBK R 500 =
AEEZN 2R 82 -
B XK B A A
rEEEE 770 =
EIEES =N
AEEHEE - 284
AEEEFHRZEIHRAY - 1374
AEESTHZzHE RITHRAX
- 7,263
AT ARIERR A F) -
AEES N 2BE RITHAY
- 3,572
aiM/\
REBEHEE 385 71
rEEEE 4,249 4131
AEBBUZETIRS 355 282
AEEZMZHES RITHRAX
179 99
ERMERBEERIIABRE R BERAZ
BB IRKETR S -
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

(b) At 31st December 2010, contribution of HK$ 165,000 was required in
respect of a defined benefit plan for a director of the Company (31st
March 2010: HKSNil) (note 38).

(©)  The Group's balances with related parties are set out in notes 28 and
34,

(d)  Key management compensations are disclosed in notes 12 and 13.

By a board resolution passed on 15th July 2010, the Company changed

its financial year end from 31st March to 31st December. As a result of the
change, the current period financial statements were made up of a nine
months period from 1st April 2010 to 31st December 2010 and therefore the
comparative amounts for the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated cash flow statement and
related notes, which covered a twelve months period from 1st April 2009 to

31st March 2010, are not directly comparable.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 12, ‘Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2012),
certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to current

period's presentation.

by R-Z—ZF+=-A=+—H AEEH
FTEIEFR 1650008 TEB ARG —AIE
EMELE(—E—ZTF=A=+—H1'F
) (MIEE3s) o

)

© AEBEEREEALZEEEGHNIE
2834 °

(o) EEEEABHERHEI2RI3RHE -

RE-_Z-ZFLATHRBENESGRE
E ARRBEVRFEAEAH=A=1—
HEXRRT-A=+—H -AMNMEHE—BE
B MM EmRRE_T-EFNA—BE
TE-ZES - A=+—HINEAHRE A
hE—ZTNFOA-—BE_Z-—ZF=4
=t+t—B+t-EAAENGaIERER K2
HEmEK GaRenERk AN EANL
REeBIAETERLR

BREAEE G ERIE 1258 DELEN : HE
ERWR-F——F— A -HBxHERRZ
FEHRER BtE THREFERETIA
HarHEz 2517 -
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 HZE Z 2 —ZTHF +-_A=+—HIL @A

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at 31st December 2010 and 31st

March 2010 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEAREH

Automated Systems
(HK) Limited
BYZG (FE)BRA

ELM Computer
Technologies Limited

BAERMRERAR

(CSA Automated
(Macau) Limited

BEZ4 (B BB AT

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment and
operation
AR B R
BEER %

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

Macau

R

Nominal value of issued

and fully paid share capital/

registered capital
BRTR
BEREK/
HEMER

HKS2

Ordinary shares
VETLERK
HK$55,350,000

A Non-voting
deferred shares
55,350,000 7T
NERFREER

HK$12,000,000
Ordinary shares
12,000,007 7T

R

MOP10,000
Ordinary shares
B 10000

TR

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by

the Company
ARREEET
RAESEGOL

1100%

1100%

1100%

R=E—ZTF+-_A=+—HER=_ZFT—ZTF=
A RIZHBARRFIBNT:

Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding, sale of computer
products and solutions and provision
of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)

REZR HEBKERK

R AR R RS
(BERERRERSE) KSR
(BREEMRE BRREERY)

Investment holding, sale of computer
products and solutions and provision
of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)

REZR HEERERK
BRH R R R RS
(BERERRERSE) KRS
(BEEMRE BRREERY)

Investment holding, sale of computer
products and solutions and provision
of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)

REZR HEERERK

R A R R IR TS
(BERERRERSE) KSR
(BEEMRE BRREERY)
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 & & =% —

Name of subsidiary i
WELRAE

ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited

Annual Report 2010 £

Statements

TE+-_A=+—RLAEA

Country/place of Nominal value of issued
incorporation/  and fully paid share capital/
establishment and registered capital
operation BETR
MR/ B R BrBE/
B2EAR /Y HEMER
Thailand THB50,000,000

ZE Ordinary shares

R 8K50,000,0007C

BB

Guangzhou Automated Systems
Limited

BEMEBXEESMRER

Taiwan Automated
Systems Limited

AERBEEEARE
BB AT

People’

s Republic of China HK$18,000,000
hEARLRME (Note 1)
18,000,000 7T

(BzET)

Republic of China NTD42,000,000
RERE 16 #42,0000007T

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by

the Company
ERREERT
RAEZ BRI

Principal activities

FEEY

100%  Investment holding, sale of computer
products and solutions and provision
of hardware services (including
installation and maintenance services)
and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professiona\ services)

REZKR HEBKERK
Y ﬁ%#ﬂ&%
(BRELERRERYE) &R
(BEEMHHRE BRREERE)

100% Sale of computer products and
solutions and provision of hardware
services (including installation
and maintenance services) and
software services (including software
development, consulting and
professional services)
HEBMERLBATER
REBHERS (BERER
RERT) K& M RS
(BERMARE
BRI REXRE)

100% Sale of computer products and
solutions and provision of hardware

services (including installation

and maintenance services) and

software services (including software
development, consulting and

professional services)

HEERERRBRATRR

REEERE
(BEZERRERB) K
YRS (BERRE

ERREXRE)
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For the nine months ended 31st December 2010 8 ZE =T —ZEF+=-A=+—HIL @A

Percentage of

Country/place of Nominal value of issued nominal value of
incorporation/  and fully paid share capital/ issued share capital
establishment and registered capital held by
operation BETR the Company
Name of subsidiary SRR/ RIK HERE/ AQRIELRT Principal activities
WELRAE LEER/ Y HEREX BRAEEZH AL FEXK
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands * Uss2 1100% Property holding
KBRAHE! Ordinary shares MERE
FemEBER
Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands * Uss2 1100% Property holding
KBRAHE! Ordinaryshares MERE
RRTER
Express Profits British Virgin Islands * Uss2 1100% Property holding
Development Limited EBREIHE Ordinary shares MERE
RRTER
A The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, carry A IS SRR (WIERARRIFER ) WEN

ﬁ%ﬂqﬂlﬂi% SSEUAR A BMEAIIREAE 2
at any general meeting of the Company nor to participate in any distribution on HEHHERRAGIRE LREXDHER
winding up. E#ZEHB K °

practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote

+ These companies operate in Hong Kong. § ZERRIRNEBLE -

1 Subsidiaries held directly by the Company. ! RAREBERBZHE AR

Note: B 2 -

1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the People’s Republic 1. BMNREBEZREEERRARAARFEAR
HMBEEMAIEBEECE -BHE_T—TF
TZ A=+ — B ZEHEME 4 /218000,000
B (ZE—FF=H =+ —H 18000000/
JT) °

of China as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise. The registered capital paid up to
31st December 2010 was HK$18,000,000 (31st March 2010: HK$18,000,000).

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the RAEABR A5 B - BHE B A R AT E A&

period. e )
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Location

b 26

Units 1to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor,
Topsail Plaza,

11 On Sum Street,

Shatin, New Territories

¥
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=B E5 1248
1275 M 152215 B AL

Annual Report 2010 £

Gross floor area (sq.ft)

BEER(FAR)

11,744 sq/ft
11,744 75 IR

Use

ik

Commercial

[GE

Tenure

FH

Medium Lease

FEAE A
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Automated Systems (HK) Ltd.

15/F, Topsail Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 Fax: (852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Ltd.

11/F, Topsail Plaza

No. 11 On Sum Street

Shatin, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2541 9900 Fax: (852) 2541 1338

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
Room 2001-2003, 20/F, Block 4, Dong Jun Plaza
836 Dong Feng Road East, Guangzhou, China
(Postal Code: 510080)

Tel: (86) 20 8760 5518 Fax: (86) 20 8767 5383

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited — Shenzhen
Room 601, No.12 Building, Second-Phase Software Park,

Middle Zone of High-tech Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China

(Postal Code: 518057)
Tel: (86) 755 2671 1491, (86) 755 2671 1481, (86) 755 2671 1471
Fax: (86) 755 2671 1451

Beijing

F10-11, Science Fortune Centre

8 Xueqing Road, Haidian District, Beijing, China
(Postal Code: 100192)

Tel: (86) 1082733988  Fax: (86) 10 8273 3999

Shanghai

Room 501, 502/510-512, Tower A, Far East International Plaza
319 Xianxia Road, Changning District, Shanghai, China
(Postal Code: 200051)

Tel: (86) 21 62351222 Fax: (86) 21 6235 1629

Hangzhou

Unit G, Tower 6, Zhongtian Mansion

173 Yugu Road, Hangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 310007)

Tel: (86) 571 8767 2710, (86) 571 8767 2711, (86) 571 8767 2712
Fax: (86) 571 8767 2713

Shenyang

Room 1903, Tower A, President Building

69 Heping North Street, Heping District, Shenyang, China
(Postal Code: 110003)

Tel: (86) 24 2281 2800, (86) 24 2281 2229

Fax: (86) 24 2281 2811

1/F, Block B-6, Zhuhai Southern Software Park,
No. 1 Software Road, Zhuhai, China

(Postal Code: 519080)

Tel: (86) 756 339 5569  Fax: (86) 756 339 5577
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E|BE 51518
T (852) 2601 6998 {8EH ¢ (852) 2601 6936

M BB ERA
E&DH
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TEE © (852) 2541 9900 {EH ¢ (852) 2541 1338
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SFEINER R — B 1215%601
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Taiwan Automated Systems Ltd.

3/F, No. 18, Sec. 6, Ming-Chuen East Road
Nei-Hu Dist. 114, Taipei, Taiwan, RO.C.

Tel: (886) 2 8792 8598  Fax: (886) 2 8792 8569

Taiwan Automated Systems Ltd. — Taichung Branch
10/F-1, No. 160, Sec. 3, Dong Sing Rd., West District,
Taichung City 403, Taiwan, RO.C.

Tel: (886) 4 23196598  Fax: (886) 4 2319 6599

CSA Automated (Macau) Ltd.

Alameda Dr. Carlos D" Assumpcao No. 180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392 Fax: (853) 2878 6390

In Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D" Assumpcao No. 180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392 Fax: (853) 2878 6390

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th FI.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th FI.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

Tel: (662) 185 3206 Fax: (662) 185 3207

AERBEXEEMBRHEERAA
BEAETI4RH R

RERBE N 185731E

EiE 0 (886)287928598 {EHE : (886) 28792 8569

BEREXEEMMEBRAG —aFR D AT
B2 ek m403F @

B 0 P = EX 160581018 2 —

TiE 1 (886)423196598  {HHE : (886) 423196599

BEIES CRFI) BR AT
SEPIR I A B 518057

REiEmER L

144 0-RE

5% 1 (853) 28786392 fEH : (853) 28786390

In Systems (Macao) Limited

SEPIR I A B 518057

REiEmER L

14 0RE

5% 1 (853) 28786392 &5 : (853) 2878 6390

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th FI.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

B E 0 (662) 1853206 55 : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building, Unit 0901, 9th FI.
Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road
Klongtan Nua, Vadhana

Bangkok 10110, Thailand

B (662) 1853206 fEE : (662) 1853207



A Member of the Teamsun Group

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BEHZAZEBER QT

15/F., Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, H.K.
Tel: (852) 2601 6998  Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
BEVBERINE15REIRESR 1518

&55: (852) 26016998  EE.: (852) 2601 6936
#B4E: http://www.asl.com.hk
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